TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
July 14, 2016 — 12:00 p.m. — Assembly Room 1

Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Committee may make recommendations
to the Board on any of the items listed below,

unless the item is specifically labeled *“Informational Only”

Page Time Requestor/
Agenda ltem Nos. Allotted | Presenter
Call To Order/Opening Remarks 2 min. Chair
Approval of Agenda 1-2 2 min. Chair
Public Comments 5 min. Standard
NOTE: During the Committee’s consideration of any Agenda item,
members of the public also have the right to address the Committee at that
time regarding that item.
Ratification of minutes of the June 2016 Meeting 3-7 2 min. Committee
New Business
Priority Project Dashboard
1. Falls 8 J. Piearson
2. Patient Throughput (Hand-out to Be Distributed During Meeting) 9
J. Piearson
Quality Outcomes Dashboard 10-13
Consideration and Possible Approval of Policies and Procedures 14 All
Patient Care Services
1. Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift 15-28
Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)
2. Alcohol Withdrawal Symptom Management 29-31
3. Chain of Command Policy 32-33
4. Emergency Cart, Cardiopulmonary Arrest 34-37
5. Family Presence During Resuscitation 38-40
6. Postural (Orthostatic) Vital Signs, Obtaining 41-42
7. Stool Management (Rectal Tube) Dignicare Stool Management 43-47
Unit Specific
Medical Staff
1. Credentialing Policy, Processing Medical Staff Reappointments 48-51
Formulary Requests
1. Bridion- Trade Name/ Sugammadex- Generic Name 52-53
2. Emend- Trade Name/ Aprepitant- Generic Name 54-55
3. Veltassa- Trade Name/ Patiromar Sorbitex Calcium- Generic Name 56-57
Review and Discussion of CLINICAL Contracts- NO Contracts To Review 10 min. | Chair
(Discussion/ Possible Action)
Review and Discussion of PAC Charter 58-60 10 min. | Cheryle
Bernard-
Shaw
Motion to go into Closed Session 2 min. Committee




8. CLOSED SESSION 30 min. | Chair
a. Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit and/or Quality Assurance
Committee (Health & Safety Code Section 32155)
b. Conference with Legal Counsel — Significant exposure to litigation
(Government Code Section 54956.9(b))
9. Reports from the Committee Chairperson of any Action Taken in 10 min. | Chair
Closed Session (Government Code, Section 549857.1)
10. Comments from Members of the Committee 5 min. Committee
11. The next meeting of the Professional Affairs Committee of the Board is on 1 min Chair
August 11, 2016.
12. Adjournment 1 min Chair




lISYoUW Jopaug

*olignd
3y} Jo siequiswl wolj syuswwod buipiebai
ydeibeied ay} peal |[yoH J0)0a11Q

al0jaq 21ignd ay} 0}
}sasejul Jo wa) Aue uo aignd
3y} Jo siaquiaw AQ sjuswwo) ‘¢

192NN Joyauig

‘Bliuul{ Jo)oaliq Ag papuooss pue
300||eyoS J0)0a11q Agq apew sem
epuabe ay) anoidde o) uonopy

‘Bunaswi

S,Jluow siyj e pamainal 8q 0} S}oeljuod
Ou S| alay) se epuabe ay) ul g Jequinu
Wwia}| JWo 0} 3j0U e spew ||aydi 10)o8liqg
‘SUOIJeO1JIPOW 10 SUOIppe OU B1am 318y}
pue epuabe ay) pamainsl 880D aY |

epuaby jo jeaouddy 2

lIaYy2u Jojoauq

I wooy Ajquiassy ul ‘wd J0:21 1B
19pio 0} Bunaaw ay) psjeo |[BY2UA 410323.1Q

8piQ o1 118D "I

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suoepUBWWOIdY
juonody dn-mojjo

uoissnoasiqg

oido|

"BUON :JuUaSqy SIOqUIB|N

"ZJUSH UslB)f pue BlBNL eUed ‘oulisobeq Joyoauq JieyD pieog ‘8loopy wo |
‘iysor eAud ‘ddo] Y Auieyf ‘puowelq Alepy ‘uny eaissar ‘ssineq uoleys ‘ddo | Ayiey ‘josuo) uonosiul pue Ayjenp 11D ‘eoueldwon Alojejnbay
Joj Joyoauq ‘uosiesid lwer ‘asueldwo) pue Aiojeinbay 10) 4030811 IS ‘Ubneueaes elolepy ‘|asunod [BIaUaS) 100y Apor :juasaid sisayjo

‘19010 @oueldwo) JeiyD

‘meys-pieusag sjflisy) pue ‘dA IS /AND ‘Z1NYoS uoseys ‘dA '9x3 /009 ‘Aisjuod endey ‘03D ‘uljelq 9AB)S :Juasald siaquiapy Bunop-uon

"UBWIOAA 1100S i pue uosuyor

Jd ‘B 8USD "I ‘OpJejuo) snale "iQ ‘Bjiuuld Buowey Jojoalig ‘ooj[eyss ALeT Jojoaliq {41ieyD) [IBUSHIN BIneT Jojosul(]  Judseldd SiaquIspy

910¢ ‘6 aunp

sajnuly uoissag uadp

Bunesyy a8 IWIWO) SilelY |eUOISSBJ0Id

193ua) |esIpay A3o-1L

L4dvedd




[4

916090 seInuiN Ovd

elisno eoued

uosliesld lwer

aie)d juslied ayl :NOILOV

[euOnEWIOU|

3y} 1no s||y saned e Jaye Jey) pajou Sem }|

‘Bupjoed) aininy ul paaoidwi aq |Im elep

ay} ‘aoejd Bumje) sanss| ay} anosdwi 0} aoe|d
aye) usawanoidwi ssadold asay) aouQ
‘Ajenow aaoldwi 0} siojesipul jsnipe 0}
paau e s| ai1ay) osje pue sjusaijed BuiAuapi
ui abusjieyo e Ajjuauno st aiey| -abelene
jeuolieu ay} uey) Japaq buiop ul [eydsoy ay)
pad|ay sajnguye asay} ey} pauodal iwepr
‘pasn Buiaq sjes Joplo pue saulapinb ay)
UM 7002 Ul oeq Aem pajeald alem Aay)
pue sauijopnb sisdas a1aA8s ay} Suleju0d
ue|d Jamod ay] ‘ainseawl mau pueliq e

si )} ybnoy} uans poob Ajgetspisuod Bulop st
e S| ainseaw sisdag ay) Jey) pauodas lwep
‘Bunesw s yuow sy} 10} passnosip 10sloid
Auoud ay) si Juswabeuew sisdas alansg

Jo bununoooy |
:sainpasold
pue saidljod aJe”) jualjed

sainpadold pue saidljod

1O |[eaolddy s|qissod
pue uonelspisuo) q

pleoqyse( josloid Ajuoud ‘e

ssauisng MaN G

ZJsH ualey|

‘0102 Ay wol) sajnuiw ay)
anoidde 0} uonow sy} papuodss
)20||BYyoS J0)08lI(] pue pasow
eliuul4 Jojoaliq pauiel seinulp

‘Bunesw
9102 ‘21 Aepy wouy sajnuiw ay) anoidde
0} UONoW B 10} paj|ed ||[aydMIA 1010811

‘9102 Ae
JO Sajnulw Jo uonesiey ‘v

‘way ay}
JO UOI}BISPISUOD S,98)}ILILLIOD

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

SUOIJEPUBWILLIODdY
fuondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oidoj




916090 seINUIN OVd

elanog euled

"UBWLIOAN

"1q Aq papuooas pue ejluul
Jo)oaaq Aq panaow se panoidde
sem ainpadoid pue Aojjod

sAlesiuiLpPY 8yl :NOILOV

‘leacidde pieog

1o} psemuoy Buiaow sajoljod ayy
anoidde 0} uoljow ay) papuooss
UBWLIOAA "JQ pue paaow

BliuUI4 J0)0BlIq "paAocidde asem
sainpasold pue saljod sadIneS

‘leudsoy ay} Je asn uj s|

18y} s1onpoud 10 way Aue Buyjas Aem Aue ul
aq jouued yeis gqHOL "yels Jo} owsp ay) op
0] |Jeyudsoy ay) ul 8q 0} SI0pPUdA apisino Aed
10U Op aMm sk Jels HOL uiel) SI0puaA eyl
pajels Os|e ay ‘uolippe ue sy ‘wlio} vvd
pue yvdiH 8u} ubis os|e SI0pusA assy) jey}
pauonuaw aH ‘jeudsoy ay) 0} ob Asyj usym
sauyjapinb |eydsoy ayj 0} aiaype 0} pasu
ABY] MmOy pue S10puUdA Mau 1o} sassaooud
ay) pauyep Apesjo a4 “Aoijod siyl yum
pajeIDOSSe SONSS| SWOS paljlied 8100 Wo |

‘paseadap ale jey) sjuejul

YlIM [P 0} MOY UO saoualajaid aney
oym sjusied yum Buijesp uo pauiel) ||am
SI jiun 8y} ul yeis odljoyje) /uensuyp syl

"9S9Y)] 9| suonenyis

anljisuas ul pauiely Ajgjeudosdde st NDIN
ul yeys ay} Jeys pauonuasw (psjjed aq Aew
Aay) JaAs)jeyMm 10) 10jaSUN0d SSO| Y} Jey)
pajou osje sem }| ‘Aoljod siyy 0} payoeye
aq 0} spaau wuoj Aienuow ay) Jo ajdwes y

"p40231 |eoIpall
8y} Jo Yed e aq 0} Spaau WO} SIY) ‘Woy |Hd

oyroads yun

£02-0198 sjuswalinbay
uoneysiA JOoysIA ssauisng |
SaINpPadoid
pue sai2]|0d aAReISIuiwpy

(ueyuj

paseadap Jo ||| Ajlesnud

JO Ajlwe4 1o} aten

jenjuidg) ainpasold
wsndeg jueju| ‘¢

2INpa30id
paseada JO ases|oy ¢

alNpadold

(i1Hd) uonewuoyuj
juaijed Jo ainsojosiq

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suoljepusawwioassy
juonoy dn-mojjod

uoIssnoasiq

oido |




916090 sSINUIN Ovd

"SJUSWILLIOD ON

sapwwo) ay)
JO SJSqQWISY\ WoJ) SlUBWIWO) "0}

[IBYIHIN J0108lIg
uoisSsog
‘US) B} SUOI}OB OU Bl1am 318y | paso|D ul ua)e] uolay Auy
[IYONIN J030811Qg Jo uosiadiieys ayj Jo suoday ‘6
‘INd ¢¢-¢
[IYSHIN Jo1oaag Je uolssag uad(Q 0} uinjas S3PWWOY dY | uoissag uadp o} winey g
‘Nd 0S:ZL }e UoISSas pasolo
ojul o6 0} panosdde Ajsnowiueun
SEM )| pue papuooss }00|[eyos "UOISS9S Paso|) oI
[IBYIUN 10308.1g Jo)oauI ‘paAow ejluul4 ajoaiqg 0B 0} uoijow e 10} payse |jdYaUIN 10308110 uoISSag pasol) L
lIBY2U Jojoaaq ‘uaye} uonoe oN :NOILOV "YJuow Siy} 10§ PMBIADI 8IOM S}OBIJUOD ON SjoeUOY) [BDIUD "9

elsno epued

ellanc) eolled

"BlIUUI4 JojoauIq
AQ papuooas pue oplejuod)
"1 Aq paaow se paroidde
alam swio4 3yl ‘NOILOV

‘uosuyop

"1 AQ papuooss pue 300|[eyos
Joyoaunq Aq panow se parosdde
sem ainpadsold pue Aojjod

s8olneg [BoI6INS 9y :NOILOV

‘'sleak g A1ons pasinal aq 0}
spaau woy Jaded ay) Jey) passnasip Sem }|

"HINYIO ol psuueds
S WO} siy ] Juswiesd) 8y} Ajuessadsu Jou

INQ BUOP S JUSWISSBSSE 8| ")l S0P SDD
Kem 8y} YlIM Jua]SISUOD Ul SUOP S| W0 SIY |

HH3
8y} Ul 184 J0U SI SIY} Jey) pajou sem )i pue
Ao110d sIy} Uo UoISSNOSIp JaLg B Sem alay |

plooay ssaiboid 'z

2001
-£88/ WO YSIA pIepue)s
dn-mojjod ueuj ysry ybiH |
swJ04

BUSIID
abieyasiqyuoissiwpy "L
s@92JAl9g [eo16ing

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiad

suonepuswwodldy
juondy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiqg

oido]




916090 s8iNUIN Ovd

[I9YIUN J0}9341Q

Nd ¥2:2 1e pauinolpe Bunasyy

Juswuwinolpy "L |

a|qisuodsay
(s)uosiag

suonepuaWIWOIY
Juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnosiq

oidoj

I~



1994 "D uopuelyg

‘mx Su YUy T eorssar |

‘o8pLiquieg '§ 9on1g S[EPIA "D WO,
SI0ABWIPIA 'V BINET ‘IOXRWOYS
: ﬂ.__ "] U99][0)) {SSBE] duef [ZOPULLIOH]
[ (1 H2qoYy feunjacd "I yeloqaq
. LI9Juny OISy 9duRN "§ UaIne
‘OMUOIN " sUUBI(] SBAOY [91910)

| ‘onJexdg (] epury :SIIQUIIA] WIBA],

_ eIOIBD) [3OBY ‘[OUI]

"V BSSOUS[ ‘RIONIG ueI(] ¢ PAOi |

eaq ¢ JoAImg pusdu] (ddog, Ayey
‘ySneueae)) BIOIRA :SIIPJOH qeIS
Z)NYOS UOIRYS IIPBITT IADRIIXY
usanoJA UIAY :IIBYD)-0))

UIpIEH S[[PUYSIA 1By )

FELTAETET

SI9LLIEQ SWODIOAO 0) 10}BONpa

PUB SNV S[°L PIM HOM 'Y

dv ® dz o1 puaixgg

JUSWISSISSY WOO0Y JOAISSqQ) JUSNRJ'T
uol[iAeg

29 7 uo sjup) ajes uado-oy'|

50375 IXON PUE SUONEpUSWILIoIaY

NOA .

GIDNVAQY

2QUI) [Py AL

luswianocldw] awWos = ¢ ANy BWOS =¢ ‘(Buluueld =T) ‘T €

9 =A1owday,
iiAeInyg ( = YJJaoN |

s[ied 910¢ duny
eje( S[[e. A1_wapa], % oy

04C" [ = 90OURISISSY Juaned ON
0, 1°C1 = Senss| uoreonpyg
%871 = SONSS] UOHEBDIPIN

Suipunol
Aoy o 1oedunt aanisod

uoAoad oy 90101 0) NUIIUOY) ¢
adueyd JO 5159} %61 = Sonssl Emmd e
Mmau a1y} Jo 1sowr Jurop Apease 046'6] = OUBISISSY WOOIYIRE
are Aot i [93) JJRIS 93, ‘T ¢ - :

suoodnIns

DJ2I2U0I 200U JUBM ,_@mwm u_or_L 1 HWHOHUNE w—.—mw—dﬁ_mhﬁﬂcu m H—QrF

pauseaT Suossa] /sialiieg '
rd

S1|NSa. SulpueISING =6 Juawianocidw| JUedIHUSIS =
TT€  9402S JUIWSSASSY HBS

NS8 ‘N¥ UIpieH 3[|3uydIIN
S||eq :|J00L uoi3n|jos paiasie|

(Puwerdorg
JON1S 2[a], SAseAy MON
(d) waysAg
UOTIUARI [[B] SSIJIIM MON
(d) 14311 [reo & yym woor jsed
Aem YHAIN -2U07Z ssed ON
(1) N pue jusned Aq paudis _
pue pamaiaal -uepq K19jes AN _
-uonuaAaL{ [[e.] 10} SuLouned
NN
~ANIQISIA s3], -UoneoyIuap]
STy 18] uBisapay
Ajuwuey pue juaned sjeonpy .
Isisse
[3tm Y 01 2r[NqUIE 0} S[qeUN
| J19]qu{IEAR 9POWIUIOD € BN
Suramoys
/3unafio} gunnp sawi e je
syuaned ysu ySIY s urewy .
SINOY 9-f AI9AD ISBI|
1€ 19[10} 0] PAISISSE YSLITY
S.d¢ duisn Suipunod ALNoy .
(.L)1011d Bunspio] |
1011 J APWDLA], /0y IAIDY

NEEEITEIGO]

1) Paisal (d) pauue|d suiog saduey)

9107 ‘1 laquuaidag Aq symun
| Anawiofa, pue sad1AI0g 21E)) ANOY
9y ul 9508 Aq spey uanedur sonpay
i

.

JuawdEls Wiy

NOA GIONVAQY
91Ud) [edipaly AUyl 2

<



PRIORITY PROJECT:

Patient Throughput (Hand-Out to be Distributed During the Meeting)



'$355€|2 Uo1IeINPa AjyIuow 3Je) punop
‘uolejuBWINIOP

JuswWieal) 1§ 5|030304d uojuanasd

aJimpaey 0} UolEIUIWNIOP YH3 JO UBISapay
‘MBIADS PUB UONBINP3 PAsnIn) 3J0W 10} SaU0Z
olul [e)dsoy papialp '3 Jjels 1adx@ Jo 4 asesldu)

uejd uondy

‘ut-Anq ayeald o3 afoud uj

S4asn aulj Juos AJawala) asow a8edus oy Al
‘521333835 10|14 JO JUBWSII0HUIDL YIM

151SSE 0] SINY 3(21 YUM HIOM :ue|d Uoidy
*Buiop Apuawund

aJe Aay) 1eym WOJY JUIIBYIP St JBYM 33S J,U0p
44e1s ‘anen si ssadoud |33y LIS ‘suoianJsu)
313.4IU0D 3J0W JUBM JJeIS (Sialeg Allawaa|

uejd uopay

9 =Anwsa|ag
0 =0yuo
slied STOZ 3unr

‘uonuaaaud Joy
syuaized yym Buiisuied g ‘Suipunos Ajsnoy
‘adeusis |jey mau ‘Bunzajiol aANDY :apnjRUI 0}

Al3awala pue oy 9T/1/9 palels 10jid s||ed

uejd uonay _

l9sie] JINDL

g

S
Anl o [=]

&

121128

4
<
=]

o
[=]

o <
S o

sheq uaned oot 49d Asnful yum sjjedq apian [endsoH

sAeq juaned 000t 42d sjjed apimw [endsoy
1211eg

uesay 21y JINDL

UB3A VD

10



-asn ueisAyd 3uidesnooul

‘pasn 21e|dwia) 3UBLISSASSY AD

pasnoo4 pue s13s JaplQ sisdas asn sg
usaym elep Janiag ‘apimuoseu el ssed
9GS 1noge smoys uljjod jeppysoun “elep
aanesedwad oN "Aepy Ul £ S, j 95€D [|ewS

(3uana 03 Joud sixejAydoad
1A Suinizdaa a1am sjuailed)

‘94007 1e Buissed Ajualsisuo)

ue|d uondYy

‘wajqosd ay) paiaaliod dAeY O) WIS
SWLIO) UOIIRIUBWINIOP 3y} O uSisapal
pUE UOI1RINP? §4E1S "UOoISSIWpe 0} Jotid
uliejlem uo sem juaned Ji UoIIEINPD
upseylem Sulpirosd 10U 219M SASINU WOS

‘|eo8 mojaq alam Asenuga4 pue Auenuer

uejd uondy

‘s3jnsad |eod
anoge AJ1Uul15I1SuU0I UosSeas n|4 1se
-JeaA 2y} Joj auop Suuoyuow NIA)

ue|d uonay

1981e] JINDL

191199

.

o

N

Wooys ondag/sisdas a1anas ‘a|pung yuawadeuey Alze3

a &

A &
5 A8

%0

ek TER % Ced T ad ! BT G SUEEE O de TSt T ah % W Ced FUED 1 TRt o AT de e TE ek TUER G el Tad PO bt W O

-~

191199

4&\@

121199

gy

- %01
%0T
%0€
%0V
%0S

J1A 3)qejuanaid Ajjenuajod pasinboy jeudsoH

%0S

%0L
%08
%06
%001

%SL
%08
%S8
%06
%56
%001

uoneziunwuwi| ezuanpyuj

uesn 918y JINDL

UBIN YD) ---— - —

S2.nsea| 310

11



(uw pET) ueaw

jeuoneN pue (uiw 08T} ueaw y) yioq
uey) (ulw gOT) 491120 34E 3M SWN|OA
{481y Auan) s|qesewod Jo sjendsoy
Suuedwoo elep asedwo) |e)dsoH man

uejd :O_vu<

‘(7€) ueaw |euonen pue (uiw
£2¥) ueaw v yloq ueys (Ul 6L€)
191139 248 am awn|oA (YSiy Aian)
3|qelewod jo sjeydsoy Suedwod
ejep asedwo) |eridsoH maN

uejd uold

‘|eAlLie O}
Joud s,933 ST 1uanbaly 01 anp ajes
|endsoy %01 doi mojaq Ajjuaisisuo)

:m_m_:o_au<.

‘yemoys 1q Aq ano
|1e4 Jo paiiou uesAyd ‘Aleniqgay

ut sstw 3|3ulS "%00T 1€ Ajjualsisuo)

uejd uoldy

WBABLIADL - — - —

0

001

00z

121199 sjuaned 3 pa1iwpy Joy awi] ainiedaq @3 03 uoisiIdg HWPY WOy Wi Uelpajy 00€
N N O O P § & 3 2> & O o P N &
KR R Y EA Y O NER N R S A TP P GO AP GRS CSRP - AR NP P
B A TR TSR A" AP M AP M- A A~ T A S S R A A
.lw. c
i

| 00T

oot

&

0

s

o1

st

191199 953 01 awi| uelpaly oz
QA > & O o o < N QA > & 0 ) S
T T AR AN Nt L e S I TR RN LA g SEPY CAPE S R
& s : ; £ 3 > ; £ 5 : ; 5 &) 3
A S TN T AR - S - I RSP S TR~ SR S DR A . SR

.». %0S
t
I

me
|

mxom

oA o eiiliiiiciiiciiiisiiio.o..

[enliy Je uudsy

o

UB3Al VD

uesn

9184 DJDL

S2INSea 240D

12



. N &A«wb y o 5 Onuv» o.gAOG/ 00“000 o\w.\70¢ &A.OO o\vAOs& &190& &(‘/O/ o\v(\o»,/ ...\49 & < vob y o &1\0\.@« o\vlvv@/ 6&0&0 .o)..70¢ .o).v‘.uO é&%& .o)m&»;b LAO/ 6&00/
‘sinoy agen) e e e e e e e e e ——— e i e e+ ——— e v+ b — - e mm— e e s e e m— — e — %00
wea) puedxa 01 Sunop ‘syuaned
10} SMT PaseEaJdUl SasSNed Yyoiym %0'S
1sn8ny uj snsuad 1d pue 3tuNjoA
Q3 43481y usamiaq uaas uolle|2LI0) #oot
] JEYREY: ] %0'ST
uejd U0y = paieas) Suiag aiojeg 1o Judlled
PO R S S i P
; . _ . _ 0
‘ulejulew ~
03 upjiop "uoiesisiulwpe ujed [ 0
03 3w} ueaw ujw oy jo |eos Suissed m
Ajjeuly yuswaaoiduwl| psnuiuo |
lleul} P U_ Hmadm' | oot
ue|d uoidy ainydeud auog Suo 10§ JusawasSeuey uied 01 g UBIPAN
1) 2> & O & S & 52 2> & O N &
-a8e1) wea) 4o sinoy puedxa 03 . 4@/7 o . = 0%9 %o ..;.vso & & mmo. ...woob ov.o o\mo N 3 & ..:«eau ol s %o ...uso ..:104/ & Az,a ...w%& .aA@ AAo, 0
Supiom -siusned 3 4o uoessiSas e
pue Sujuaaids gIA JO ssauljawil ~
anoudwi 01 s4883141 uodl (ISINY) w 0s
wex3 usaJlos {e21pay uo Supom |
m .
uejd uoidy | 191ed sjuaiied pasieyasiq g3 10§ 19e1U0) J2PIA0I O) [BALY Q3 WOL) S| UBIPaAf w o
R R I R P AP g
‘s1d asayy} Jo} w °
IndUENOIL Ul JUBUBAOIE] [E19A0 e e e e t 4 s et b o . —— e . — s — b — s m— o —.  — t — t — ¢ — 0ot
ue uaas sey Yaiym sid g pue  [9na7 * 002
Joj 98eu] Wea| uo Iom 01 INUIIU0D ﬁ 008
loneg i
uejd uoidy syuaned a3 pasieyasig Joj aanyuedag @3 031 [BALLY (3 WOy SWi] UeIpay - ooy
JIOBUBLDANDL = oo s = UBQINN YD - rmm o = UBDN  eeeeseesnmnssersans 9ley DINDL

S24NSe3|A] 940D

13



) HEALTH CARE

FOR Y@U

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

July 14th, 2016

CONTACT: Sharon Schuitz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason | Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines Practice change

for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)

Alcohol Withdrawal Symptom Management

NEW

Chain of Command Policy

3 year review

Emergency Cart, Cardiopulmonary Arrest

3 year review,
practice change

Family Presence During Resuscitation

3 year review,
practice change

Postural (Orthostatic) Vital Signs, Obtaining

3 year review,
practice change

Stool Management (Rectal Tube) Dignicare Stool Management
System

3 year review

Unit Specific

Medical Staff

Credentialing Policy, Processing Medical Staff Reappointments

3 year review,
practice change

Formulary Requests

Bridion — Trade Name  Sugammadex — Generic Name NEW
Emend — Trade Name  Aprepitant — Generic Name NEW
Veltassa — Trade Name Patiromer sorbitex calcium — Generic Name NEW

14



(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SUBJECT: Advanced Care Technicians (ACT)

Assignments and Shift Routines for
Telemetry and Acute Care Services

(ACS)

REVISION DATE(S): 4/14
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 02/1410/15
Nursing Executive Committee Approval: 02/1410/15
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 04/14
Board of Directors Approval: 04/14
A. PURPOSE:

1. To outline the Advanced Care Technician’s shift assignments, routines, tasks, vital sign, intake

and output, and weight assignment.
2. Acute Care Services (ACS) ACT's, Telemetry ACTs, resource ACTs, and registry Certified
Nursing Assistants (CNA) shall use the Handoff Tool for their assigned unit to communicate shift

handoff.
POLICY:
1. ACTs shall assist with patient care needs of all patients’ on their assigned units as delegated by
the Registered Nurse (RN) and the Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM)/relief charge nurse.
2. Assignments shall be made every shift by the ANM or relief charge nurse.
3. Assignments may not be changed without the approval of the ANM/relief charge nurse
4, Breaks Telemetry & ACS
a. One ACT shall be available on each unit at all times
b. ACTs shall sign up for break times at the beginning of their shift.
c. Break times will be determined by the management team and listed on the break sheet.

i. Sitter break coverage shall be arranged by the ACTs assigned to the unit or ANM
d. The ACT break sheet will be posted on every unit to inform RNs of the ACT break times.
e. ACTs are expected to take the allotted time for breaks.
i. ACT’s must initial on the break form to confirm break time.
5. Hand-off
a. Shift handoff is mandatory and shall be conducted for a maximum of 10 minutes from

0700-0710 and 1900-1910.

i. After reviewing the ACT/CNA Report Sheet, start answering call lights and phones,
pass or pick up meal trays, and start A.M. or P.M. care while the nurses are
completing report.

b. Hand Off Tool

i. Telemetry Hand Off Tool - The Nursing Unit Census shall be used as the
Telemetry ACT Hand-off tool.

ii. Acute Care Services Hand Off Tool (ACT Report) - The ACS ACT Hand Off Tool
shall be used when giving and receiving report

C. Shift hand-off shall consist of a verbal hand-off and rounds on assigned patients
d. The following information shall be documented on the ACT Hand-off tool:
i. Code Status

i. Isolation Status

ii. Patient’s orientation i.e. alert, confused

iv. Oxygen requirements i.e. nasal cannula, number of liters
V. Mobility i.e., with assist, lift team assist, turn every 2 hours

15



| Patient Care Services Manual
Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)

Page 2 of 14
vi. Toileting needs i.e., voids, foley catheter, rectal tube, incontinent
vii. Hygiene needs i.e., (shower bed bath, or minimum assistance)
viii. Oral care
iX. Tubes, drains, and other patient care equipment
X. Daily weight
Xi. Diet
1) Aspiration precautions
2) Level of assistance required during meals
Xii. Intravenous (1V) type and location [i.e. peripheral (saline lock) vs. central venous
catheter (CVP), or peripherally inserted central catheter (PICC)].
Xiii. Special considerations
1) Hard of Hearing
2) Legally Blind
3) No Blood Pressure (BP) on Left or Right Arm
4) Restraints
5) Dialysis fistula/graft
6) Mastectomy
xiv.  Admitting diagnosis
XV. Safety Falls Risk status
XVi. Braden Scale
e. Note tasks not completed on previous shift and ensure incomplete tasks are completed
prior to the end of the shift. Task not completed shall be communicated to RN and
oncoming ACT.
f. After the RN (s) complete their bedside report, check for any additional patient information
or changes in patient care for assigned patients.
g. Discuss with the lift team member patients needing their assistance.
6. Vitals Signs
a. Vital signs shall be taken on all patients per unit policy and as directed by the RN
i. Telemetry vitals signs every 4 hours while patient is awake and as needed
ii. ACS vital signs every 8 hours and as needed
b. Vital signs shall be taken on all patients scheduled for discharge at least one hour prior to
discharge per Patient Care Services Discharge of Patients — Discharge AMA Policy.
c. The heart rate/pulse will be obtained using the patient’s radial pulse per Mosby’s Radial
Pulse Procedure.
d. Vital signs shall be initially documented on the Vital Signs Worksheet and then charted in
the medical record after they are reviewed by the primary RN.
e. After obtaining vital signs complete the following:
i. Make copies of the Vital Signs Worksheet for each RN
ii. Give each RN a copy of the Vital Signs Worksheet
iii. Document the results of the vital signs in the medical record after the primary RN
reviews the results and provides instructions to document
f. Report the following findings to the primary RN immediately or as instructed by the
primary RN:
i. Temperature greater than 38.6 or less than 36
il. Heart Rate (HR) greater than 100 or less than 60
iii. Systolic Blood Pressure (SBP) greater than 150 and less than 100
iv. Diastolic Blood Pressure (DBP) greater than 90
V. Respiratory Rate (RR) greater than 24 and less than 10 breaths per minute
1) Post-op patients RR less than 14 breaths per minute
vi. SPO2 less than 92%
7. Intake and Output (I & O)

a. Intake

16



| Patient Care Services Manual
Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)
Page 3 of 14

| i. ACTs are responsible for measuring and documenting oral intake on all patients
on their assigned unit in a timely manner
] ii. ACTs are responsible for refilling the water pitchers every 8 hours or as directed
by the primary RN.
b. Output
i. ACTs are responsible for measuring and discarding urine and stool for all patients
on their assigned unit, and documenting the results in a timely manner.
| 1) Check urine output every 4 hours and notify the primary RN if low or no
output. Notify the primary RN if less than 240 mLs of urine is obtfained
within 8 hours or patient has not voided.
| 2) Check stool output once a shift and notify the primary RN of any complaints
of constipation or diarrhea
| i. Output from tubes and drain is limited to Foley catheters, rectal tubes, and
colostomies canisters and will be measured and discarded at the end of the shift or
as directed by RN.
iii. Nasogastric canisters will be emptied as directed by RN. .
c. Intake and output will be completed and documented in a timely manner and prior to the
end of each shift.
| d. Intake and outputs not completed by the end of the shift shall be communicated to the
oncoming ACT/CNA and primary RN.
8. Weights
a. Admission
i. All patients shall be weighed on admission
1) All patients transferred to Telemetry shall be weighed as directed by the
RN.
| ii. The patient’s weight and the type of scale used to weigh the patient shall be
documented in the medical record.

i Nightshift ACTs shall receive a daily weight assignment from the RNs on their
assigned units.
ii. All daily weights shall be completed and documented by nightshift ACTs
iii. Weights not completed shall be communicated to the RN and the oncoming shift
ACT.
1) The oncoming shift ACT shall weigh the patient(s) and document the
weight
C. Please review Patient Care Services Weighing Patients for additional information
9. Bath Assignments
a. Document bath assignments on the Bath Board. Draw a line through the assignment
when the bath is completed.
i. Place the letter “R" near the assignment if the patient refuses and inform the
primary RN.
ii. ACTs are responsible for documenting completion of the baths in the medical
record.
iii. Dayshift ACTs are responsible for complete assist baths or ensuring showers are
taken, if ordered, on their assigned patients.

1) Baths not completed on the dayshift shall be communicated during shift
hand-off and completed by the nightshift ACT.
iv. Nightshift: Each ACT is responsible to complete up to 4 baths on confused or total

care patients. If these patients are not on the unit, ask each primary RN for at least
two patient bath assignments.
1) Baths not completed on the nightshift shall be communicated during shift
hand-off and completed by the dayshift ACT
b. Electrodes shall be replaced with each bath if needed and PRN.

17



| Patient Care Services Manual
Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)

Page 4 of 14

10.

11.

d.
e.
Infectio
a.
b.

c.
d.
e.

f.

Ventilator patients (Core Telemetry ACTs only may be assigned to these patients:

i. Ventilator patients that are not weaning shall receive a bath daily on nightshift and
as directed by the RN.

i Ventilator patients and patients with artificial airways that are weaning shall receive
their baths on the nightshift between 1800 and midnight or as directed by the
primary RN.

Confused, disoriented, or patients that are awake shall be offered a bath during the PM

and night time frames or as directed by the RN

Patients shall sit in chair for all meals unless instructed to remain in bed by the primary
RN

Diabetic patients should not receive their trays until checking with primary RN to ensure
the point of care blood glucose (finger stick) is completed

Distribute bedtime snacks as directed by the RN

i. Restock refrigerator when supplies are received for dietary

Document percentage of meal intake in the medical record.

Ensure trays are removed from patient’'s room after completion of the meal

n Control

Infection control manual must be followed at all times.

Always check with the RN if unsure of the patient’s isolation status or if unclear on what
isolation precautions need to be taken.

Infection Control Caddys or baskets must be kept stocked throughout the shift by both the
day and night shift ACTs.

Gloves and masks must be disposed of when exiting the room of a patient that is on
isolation precautions.

Perform hand hygiene and clean equipment use for all patients prior to leaving patient's
room.

Do not use masks multiple times. Masks are one time use only.

C. PROCEDURE:
Duties and Responsibilities of all ACT’s

] 1.

a
b.
c.
d
e

Document all interventions performed.

Answer telephones and patient call lights during RN shift hand-off and PRN

Sitter relief as directed by the RN and/or ANM/relief charge nurse

Weights (daily, admission, transfer and as directed by the RN)

Pre-operative shower/baths for patients as directed by RN per PCS Pre-Operative Patient

Preparation

i. Cardiovascular surgery (CVS) patientspatients pre-operative clipper prep and
showers/bath should be performed by Telemetry ACTs hired for the Telemetry
Unit.

Distribute and assist with meal trays and bedtime snacks as directed by RN

Ambulate patients as directed by RN

i. Documentation should include the patient’s distance and tolerance of the activity

Assist with passive Range of Motion (ROM) as directed by the RN

Assist with pressure ulcer reduction by completing the following:

i. Assist with and/or ensure the lift team repositions patients requiring assistance
every 2 (two) hours and more often as directed by the RN

i Offer toileting and hygiene care to incontinent patients every hour

iii. Offer hydration as directed by the RN

iv. Discuss any skin abnormalities with the primary RN

Discontinue foley catheters and saline locks as directed by the RN and document in the

medical record. Notify RN immediately if unable to manage bleeding, redden skin, patient

complaint of pain not related to removal of tape, drainage other blood.

18



| Patient Care Services Manual
Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)
Page 5 of 14

k. Apply Falls Risk bands as directed by RN or as indicated from the information obtained
from the hand-off tool per PCS Fall Risk Procedure and Scoring Tool

Check and restock patient room supply baskets and remove inappropriate supplies every
shift

m. Document vital signs, weights, intake and output, and Activity of Daily Living (ADL)s
n. Other duties as assigned by RN and/or ANM/relief charge nurse
2. Hourly Rounding ACT Standard Work
a. ACTs shall round on the odd hours and as direct by RNs.
b. Introduce yourself to patient and explain your role
C. Inform patient of the task(s) that you plan to perform prior to performing the tasks(s)
d. Address the four (4) P’s i.e., Potty, Pain, Position and Possession
e. Address comfort needs
f. Ask patient prior to leaving room if there is anything else you may do for them
g. Document completed task in the medical record
3. Patient Safety
a. Prior to leaving a patient’s room ensure the following:
i. Patient’s room is clean and uncluttered
i, Bedside tray is clean, clear of clutter and within patient’s reach
iii. Call button, television remote control and patient’s other personal items are within
patient’s reach
iv. Water pitcher is filled per RN instructions and/or per unit specific policy
V. Patient’s bed is in low position with upper side rails in up position
vi. Appropriate patient signs are posted as directed by RN
vii. Ensure each room has appropriate urine or stool graduated collection containers.
viii. Ensure graduated container is clearly marked with patient's name and bed
location. For example:
1) Mr. Doe
2) Room 232
b. Assist the lift team when they are in the room turning patients or ambulating patients
4, Equipment
a. Ensure all patient care equipment is placed or returned to the appropriate location
b. Ensure equipment that requires charging is plugged in a socket when not in use
C. Ensure equipment is cleaned per TCMC policy or manufacturers recommendation after
each patient use
d. Ensure remote monitoring unit and remote monitoring cables are cleaned when patient
are transferred or discharged
5. Admissions and/or Transfers
a. Assist with admission and transfers to unit by completing the following:

i. Set up room with hygiene items, water pitcher, cup and urine collection container
(label container with patient's name and room number)
ii. Ensure chair scale is available, zeroed, and near patient room; use the chair scale
to weigh ambulatory patients.
1) If a bed with a scale is needed, ensure the bed is zeroed per unit specific
policy.
iii. Assist patient into a gown if needed.
iv. If abnormal skin findings are observed, notify the RN.
b. Orient patient on the use of bed controls, call button, television (TV) remote, telephone,
meals times, and use of light controls
C. Provide rationale for using urine collection container
d. Document patient’s belongings, vital signs, admission weight, height, and ADLs in the
medical record
i. Notify primary RN of abnormal vital signs, patient questions, concerns, complaints,
and other abnormal findings.

19



| Patient Care Services Manual
Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)

Page 6 of 14
e. Monitored units:
i. Telemetry Unit
1) Place clean Telemetry box with batteries inserted and leadwires in room
2) Attach patient to Telemetry box, or DASH if needed, on arrival to room. Call
the monitor technician (MT) to verify patients name and rhythm is visible on
the monitor
3) Ensure Telemetry box is placed in a plastic protective cover
i, Medically Monitored Unit
1) Place clean remote monitoring unit with batteries inserted and leadwires in
room
2) Attach patient to remote monitoring unit, on arrival to room. Call the monitor
technician (MT) to verify patients name and rhythm is visible on the
monitor
6. Post-Operative Transfers — set-up room before patient arrives
a. Bed available with linen pulled down and scale zeroed
b. Equipment available:
i. Vital sign machine
ii. Remote monitoring device appropriate to unit
iii. Oxygen regulator with tubing connector
iv. Suction set-up including regulator, tubing and container
V. Infusion pump
Vi. Sequential compression pump
vii. Emesis basin
7. Discharges, transfers to non-monitored units, or rate monitoring discontinuation
a. For monitored patients, remove remote Telemetry box/ remote monitoring unit

immediately after notification by the RN or ANM/relief charge nurse
i. Clean Telemetry box/remote monitoring unit and leadwires with appropriate
cleaning solution and store in the appropriate location
b. Place all patient belongings in a “Patient Belonging Bag”
i. Check room cabinets, drawers, and bedside table for patient's belongings
ii. Inform RN if patient/or their family reports personal items are missing, notify RN
immediately.
c. Assist patient with discharge by performing the following as directed by the RN:
i. Removal of saline lock
ii. Removal of foley catheter
iii. Assist patient with applying clothing

d. Ensure vital signs including pulse oximetry are obtained at least one hour prior to
discharge. Inform RN of the results immediately.
e. Assist with discharge transfer via wheelchair as directed by the RN

AD. SPECIALTY PATIENT POPULATIONS:
8:1. Status Post Cardiac Catheterization

a. Non-core Telemetry ACT will receive additional instructions from primary RN

b. Do not reposition patient without instructions from the primary RN

C. Ensure a procedure vital sign sheet is placed in patient’'s room

d. Program vital sign machine to take vital signs every 15 minutes or as directed by an RN
8:2.  Cardiovascular Surgery (CVS) Patients — shall be assigned to core Telemetry ACTs

a. Pre-operative Care

i. All AM showers should be completed 2 (two) hours prior to the surgery. Verify the
time of AM shower with the RN.

ii. Perform the following task as outlined below and/or as directed by the RN
1) Obtain urine for urinalysis
2) Set up DVD player with the appropriate education DVD as directed



| Patient Care Services Manual

Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)

Page 7 of 14

3) Assist patient with PM shower/bed bath

a) Change linen prior to patient returning from bath or after completion
of bed bath
4) Complete AM clipper prep
a) Use surgical clippers only. Do not use disposable razors.
b) Change clipper blade frequently as needed do not allow the clipper
blades to become dull.
5) Change patient's electrodes and place patient on Telemetry box
6) Do not place electrodes on or near the sternum.
7) Notify the primary nurse of abnormal skin findings.
8) Weigh patient if more than 3 (three) days has passed since admission or
as directed by the RN
9) Document shower or bed bath, clipper prep, weight and vitals in the

medical record

b. Post-operative Care Prior to Shower/Bath

All CVS patients shall shower unless contraindicated, i.e., shortness of breath,
attached to a pacemakers, attached to infusion pump, and/or abnormal vital signs
as directed by the primary RN.

If a patient does not shower or receive a bed bath on the day shift, the patient shall
have a shower/bed bath on the PM shift with the assistance of the ACT.

All patients must receive a shower or bed bath daily and/or as directed by the RN.

iv. Perform the following task as outlined below and/or as directed by the RN:

1) Verify with the RN patient may be escorted to shower. Remain with patient
during first shower and/or until the primary RN states it is safe for the
patient to be alone during their shower.

2) Report the following to the primary RN; patient compilaints of dizziness,
headache, light-headedness shortness of breath, increased pain, and/or
drainage from incision sites.

3) Remove and discard dressing and assist patient to the shower using the
necessary equipment directed by the RN

4) Do not remove the patient’s oxygen during the shower unless instructed by
the RN

5) Cover peripheral |V access or central line 1V access with water proof
barrier or glove. Secure the water proof barrier or glove with waterproof
plastic tape

6) Remove ted hose, if applied prior to going to the shower

7) Report patient’s refusal of shower or bath to primary RN

C. Post-operative Care After Shower/Bath
i. Assist patient back to their room, remove water proof barrier from peripheral 1V site
or central 1V site. Notify RN immediately if the central line dressing is wet or loose
ii. Ensure incisions are dry. Do not apply lotion, ointments, betadine, iodine, or
creams to incisions.
iii. Re-apply ted hose if ordered
iv. Assist patient to bed or chair
V. Document patient’s bath/shower and ambulation to shower in the medical record.
vi. Ensure all patient equipment is within reach i.e., call button, water cup, tissue,
telephone, and Incentive Spirometer (1S).
d. Post-Operative Ambulation

Ambulate patients as ordered or at least 3-4 times a day.

1) Examples: ambulate patient after breakfast, before lunch or dinner, and
after dinner or prior to the patient’s bedtime.

Patient’s first ambulation shall be with oxygen, if ordered, and with a nursing staff

and thereafter as directed by RN.

21



| Patient Care Services Marual

Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)
Page 8 of 14

B-E.

Check patient’s oxygen saturation during ambulation.

iv. Notify the primary RN if patient appears short of breath, patient complains of
shortness of breath, has a decrease on oxygen saturations, and/or complains of
discomfort. Assist patient back to their room or to nearest chair.

V. Ambulation post-op CVS with patient pushing a wheelchair and oxygen until
informed by an RN patient may ambulate independently

vi. Encourage patients with steady gaits to ambulate ad lib, or as directed by RN.

vii. Document patient’s ambulation distance and tolerance in the medical record

Seizure monitored patients on Medically Monitored unit

a. Non-core 4 Pavilion ACTs will receive additional instructions from primary RN
Orthopedic patient population

a. Non-core 1 North ACTs will receive additional instructions from primary RN
Oncology patient population

a. Non-core 2 Pavilion ACTs will receive additional instructions from primary RN
Progressive Care Unit

a. ACTs assigned to the Progressive Care Unit will follow the guidelines identified

within the Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for
Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS) with the following exceptions:

iv.

ACTs will be staffed based on unit census

Handoff-tool

1) ACTs will use Progressive Care Unit identified hand-off tool

Vital signs will be obtained as outlined for ACS and Telemetry and as

ordered

Showers

1) A Correctional Officer (CO) or Deputy will escort patients to and from
the showers. Patients will be showered as outlined below:
a) Occupational Therapy (OT) Patients

i) Occupational Therapist will assist with showers
b) Post Cardiac Surgery Patients
i) Patients will be showered daily as order; preferred time
prior to 0700
c) California Department of Correction and Rehabilitation (CDCR)
i) Patients will be showered on Monday, Wednesday, and
Friday
d) San Diego Department of Correction
i) Patients will be showered on Tuesday, Thursday, and
Saturday

Baths (Bed Bath)

1) Patients will receive a bed bath only if a shower is contraindicated

1:2) If patient requires a bed bath, allow patient to bath self and provide
assistance as needed

Electrode Care - electrodes will be changed daily with AM vitals and

scheduled baths/showers as identified in 6.v.

Additional task and responsibilities are outlined in the Progressive Care Unit

ACT Shlft Task Llst

Acute Care Services Hand-Off Tool (ACT Report) - SAMPLE
Telemetry ACT Hand-Off Tool - SAMPLE

ACT Task List

ACT Shift Helpful Hints
Progressive Care Unit ACT Shift Task

22



| Patient Care Services Manual

Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)

Page 9 of 14

p— i A et

Sample Acute Care Services Hand Off Tool (ACT Report)

ACT REPORT

FaTiEMT HaME: | mooMm
COAGE. | SEN | CODF FALLABE ¥ K
j

DAL NS SLFAT | ORYGEY
1SCOLATIONR: TenhaRd | wESA fw

rr MNFEAURRL (25
SITL:
LCTIVITY: SUTPUT e
BIET: ACUHCHECK:
- Y
IMOTES.

BATIENT MAME:

TMGE |

sex: | CDI:E_[NLL%F: TN

RO |

i
&GRS E ALFRT | MEyGEH

== N
I" a.?Ls"‘TL{)l% ST LR Lunt
] Lt Wl

Sibe; -
A TITY: THITRUT: OG-
k
el

Iaccu CHECK:

.o

PATICHT MARE: T hoom
AGE- 5EX COTE  |FALLRISK ¥ M
CINGHDSS: ALERT ’ GRYGEN |
i‘iaﬁﬁﬁa - . uleﬂ:: o bRR h -.-'i!—!._—-‘l

; LA 05 B ey wEY
SITE: [
ALTHITY: [ouTPyT: vis:

i
-leET

. [ ———— Y N
Fﬁﬁu CHECK:

¥ K

ROTES:

CPATIENT HAME: ROORE |
i o T T - .

AGE: | SEX: 1:‘_‘0535- FALL BISE: ¥ 8
DIAGMODSIES: T siERT Tonvein
EOLATION, G WRRE | GEL

C-0FF EFPENE Yar
LITE:
ACTIVITY: ]z:ruwaﬁ': VIS b
|
ED ACCL CHECK:
YoM
(PATIENT NAMT RO

AISE; SEX | oonDE [FALLRIST Y N
[agyoss: "':I.@fﬁi‘ﬁ CNVEER |
Sl & Ty P REPCOETY B¥IAS - sk,

CAHR bkl rant akE
SITE o
ACTIVITY: auTPUT. WS
'DIET: ALCU CHECE:
L
HOTES
BATIER | NAME; muﬁ”[
LI
ol sex: | conk FALLESE: ¥ R
CINGHOSS: TALERT [GinvGEN
[moLaTion: B =
cCT#F IEOWNT faEy
SITE: |
ACTIVITY: QUTFUT: Tels: |
DIET: LU CHECK:
YR
TR

23



| Patient Care Services Manual
Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)

Page 10 of 14

SampleTelemetry ACT Hand-Off Tool

TRICITY KEOICAL CENTER
NURSING UNIT CENSUS

SAMPLE NURSINGUNT 2E

KON Current Date

ROOH  PATIEWT NAME AGE  SEX ADWTLDATE  LOS WRWN TYPE SERVICE
IGNOSIS COREHEAS  ADMIT PHYSICIAN FALLRISK  BRADEN  ACCOMMODETION

FRIKARY INCURANGCE URINARY CATHETER CEMERAL LINE

1741 Patient's Name 19y Date of Admission irgalisnt DOU

';‘ﬁh duter NPO Admitting Physician R % 9-3 ']2 Dol

Heditaie Aang B Up with accict BER, 21 NC, Dailyy WT, 1V cn pump Bath

1M} Patient’s Name 5TY  Npate of Admission} Ingabient DU

Sapss Hypatheimis Admitting Physician FR: 8% 85 14 00U

Hed-Cal up Ad Lib, gait ctendy, Indutling talhete RA, 6L Tuple
Fawily at bedside

B patient’s Name £ F Date of Adinissiod Ingabent  DOU

PEUTO8 Mo code ottne M P pamitingPhysician R385 15 00U

The following information shall be documented on the ACT Hand-off tool

Code Status

Isolation Status

Patient’s orientation i.e. alert, confused

Oxygen requirements

Mobility i.e. with assist, lift team assist, turn every 2 hours

Toileting needs i.e. voids, foley catheter, rectal tube,
incontinent

Tubes and drains

viii. Daily weight

iX. Equipment in use
Review the handoff tool for the information listed above and the
following:

X. Admitting diagnosis

Xi. Safety Falls Risk status

Xii. Braden Scale

24



| Patient Care Services Manual

Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)
Page 11 of 14

ACT Task List

]

OooDOCO O

O

Beginning of the Shift Checklist
Receive hand-off tool for the following:
v Diet
v" Ambulatory needs
v Code Status
v Isolation Precautions
v’ Special Considerations
Hard of Hearing
Legally Blind
No BP on Left or Right Arm
Restraints
Fall Risk
Pressure Ulcers

VVVVVY

Vitals Signs

»  Write your name and date on patient’s
board

= Make sure all patients have an
identification band or a risk for fall band.
If the allergy band is missing, notify RN

After completing vitals, if AM
= Prepare patients for breakfast
= Offer washcloth for hands and face

Before Meal Trays Arrive
Document vitals and assist with answering
call lights and telephones
Document bath assignments on the bath
board

Arrival of Meal Trays
Pass trays and assist with answering lights
Pass HS snacks as directed by RN
Assist feeders, if no feeders, go to break or
document VSS and | & O’s

Vital Signs AM Shift
Begin AM vitals 0730-0900
Begin Noon vitals at 1100-1200
Begin Evening vitals at 1600 & 1930
Begin Midnight vitals at 2200-0100
Begin Night Shift AM vitals 0400-0600
Documented vital signs as soon as possible

After meal times
Complete documentation
Ambulate patients

Intake and Output
Document output after completing task
Document intake as soon as possible

Hourly Rounding
Assist with hourly rounding as directed

< & 0O OO0OO0OCOOD

AN N NN

HS Snack
Pass HS as directed by RN. Document intake in
the medical record

HS Care
Assist patients with HS care

End of Shift Checklist
I/Os documented
Vital Signs documented
Hand-off tool updated
Patient’s room clean, call button within reach
Upper side rails up
Water pitcher refilled per unit policy and/or as
directed by RN
Patient information signs posted above head of
bed

Admission Checklist
Assist ED staff by helping to transfer patient from
gurney to their room
If patient is ambulatory, use chair scale
Ask patient for their height or estimate (verify with
RN)
Assist patient to bed
Assist patient with removal of their clothes
Assist patient into a hospital gown
Obtain admission vital signs
Provide the patient with the following:
» Pitcher of water and cup, if not NPO
> Box of tissue
> Bedside trash bag
> Toothbrush and toothpaste
» Plastic comb
> Slippers
» Place a urinal or “hat” in the bathroom
> Label urinal or hat with pt's name and room
number
Before leaving the room complete the following:
> Instruct patient how to use the call button
and place it near the patient
» Instruct patient how to use to the bedside
lights, TV remote, and bed controls
> Place bedside table within reach of patient
Document the patient’'s WT, HT, and vital signs

Transfer /Discharge Checklist
Assist with discharges and transfers as directed by
RN and/or ANM/relief charge nurse
Ensure vital signs including pulse oximetry are
obtained at least one (1) hour prior to discharge

Telemetry 2/08, Revised 11/10;5/11. 5/12, 3/13 PFR

25




Patient Care Services Manual
Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)

Page 12 of 14

ACT Shift Helpful Hints

TIME TASK HELPFUL HINTS

0700-0800 | Provide/receive hand-off and round with off-going Document any special task on your vital signs’
ACT. worksheet
Identify sitters and arrange break coverage. Ask patients the following prior to leaving their rooms:
Check to ensure previous ACT provided patients 1. Would you like to sit in the chair or dangle on
not NPO with a fresh pitcher of water the side of the bed for breakfast?
Assist with answering phones and calls lights 2. Can | get you anything before | leave?
Receive update from RNs 3. Check incontinent patients
Offer washcloth for hand/face

0805-1100 | Prepare patients for breakfast and pass trays Bath assignments:
Take vital signs, make copies of the vital signs’ Note the patients who will need oral care, baths, or
worksheet for the primary nurses, and receive require assistance with repositioning or ambulating.
approval of vitals before documenting. Assist patients with feeding as needed
Document vitals, outputs, and ADLS
Assist with answering phones and calls lights Take a few purple fall bands and keep them in your
Start AM bath assignments pocket. Put them on patients as needed while you are
Assist with answering call lights and answering taking vital signs, answering calls lights, assisting with
telephone calls, reposition patients and baths.
Complete oral care as needed. Pick up trays, and
Document breakfast intake

Until lunch | Start Noon Vital signs Note the patients who will require assistance with

trays arrive

Check incontinent patients; assist patients to the
bathroom, and check urine collection containers.
Sign falls log

Document vitals, output, and ADLs prior to leaving
for the next unit.

Assist with answering call lights and answering
phones.

Assist with passing lunch trays and assist patients
with feeding as needed

repositioning or ambulating.
Ask patients the following prior to leaving their rooms:
1. Would you like to be repositioned?
2. Would you like to sit in the chair or dangle on
the side of the bed for lunch?
3. Would you like to take a walk before or after
lunch?
Can | get you anything before | leave?

Breaks Take morning break as assigned. Inform ACTs and primary RNs you are leaving the floor
Breaks shall not exceed 30 minutes for break
Until lunch | Go to lunch after patient lunch trays are passed Inform primary nursing that you are leaving the floor for

trays arrive
-1330

(Breaks shall not exceed 30 minutes)

Pick up lunch trays

Document intake and complete documentation of
noon vital signs.

Complete AM Care and reposition patients
Assist with answering call lights.

break
Assist with discharges, transfers, and admissions

1331-until | Round: Check incontinent patients; assist patients | Assist with discharges, transfers, and admissions
arrival of to the bathroom, check urine collection containers Prepare patient’s for dinner (assist to chair, raise head
dinner and empty foley catheters, and other drainage of bed)

trays coliection containers. Complete baths.

Refill water pitchers

Assist with answering call lights and telephones
Complete charting.

Ambulate patients

Set up room (s) for new admissions

inform primary nursing that you are leaving the floor for
break

After ambulating patients offer the chair instead of
returning them to bed. (This will prepare the patient for
dinner).

Call the lift team to assist as needed.

Consider documenting any | & Os or ADLS that you
have not completed.

Do not restock supply baskets before you complete
your documentation.

Remember: an empty room will be filled and you will be
expected to assist.

26



Patient Care Services Manuat
Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)

Page 13 of 14

TIME TASK HELPFUL HINTS
until Prepare for break Inform ACTs and primary RNs you are leaving the
dinner Take evening break as assigned. floor for break

trays arrive

Breaks shall not exceed 30 minutes
Assist with answering telephones and call lights

1700-1830
(Dinner
Trays
Arrive)

Pass trays
Assist with patients as needed

Once trays are passed and you have assisted
patients requiring assistance with feeding, go to
break.

1831-1900

Prepare for hand-off
Review documentation
Round on all patients

Complete task as needed

1901-2000

Provide/receive hand-off, round with off-going ACT.
Assist with answering call lights and telephones
Receive update for task to perform from primary RNs

1931-2000

Pick up dinner trays

Start vitals

Make copies of the vital signs’ worksheet for the primary
nurses.

Document vitals, intakes, outputs, and ADLS

Get an update and sitters you may need to relieve for
breaks. Check incontinent patients

Place bedside table, with water pitcher, call button, and
telephone within patient’s reach. (Check to ensure the
previous shift provided patients not NPO with a fresh
pitcher of water).

Assist with answering phones and calls lights

Identify patients requiring baths, ambulation,
repositioning every two hours

Consider documenting intakes before starting
vitals

If you cannot complete your documentation, do
not worry, chart as much information as you can
and continue to assist as the primary nurses as
needed.

Assist with transfers, discharges, or admissions

2001-2230

Take dinner break (breaks shall not exceed 30 minutes)
Assist primary RNs

Continue to complete charting

Offer PM oral and hygiene care

Check supply baskets and restock as needed

Assist with answering call lights

Refill water pitchers, place NPO signs as needed,
document

| & Os and ADLs.

Assist with night vital signs as directed

Pass HS snack as directed by nursing

Assist with answering call lights and complete unfinished
documentation.

Update primary nurse of any task not completed

Complete your charting before checking or
restocking the supply baskets.

If working with weaning ventilator patients, began
PM bath.

Complete baths assigned by RN or not completed
by dayshift

2231-0030

Vital signs

0031-0400

Complete task as assigned by RNs, Round on all
patients, Check complete baths assigned by RNs

Assist with admissions,
Complete at least two baths on patients defined in
this policy

0401-0659

Complete end of shift task i.e., vital signs, daily weights,
intake and output, refill water pitchers,
Task assigned by primary RNs

Provide/receive hand-off and round with off-going ACT.
Identify sitters and arrange break coverage.

Check to ensure previous ACT provided patients not
NPO with a fresh pitcher of water

Assist with answering phones and calis lights

Receive update from RNs

Offer washcloth for hand/face

0700-0800

Review 0700-0800 previously stated




| Patient Care Services Manua!

Advanced Care Technicians (ACT) Assignments and Shift Routines for Telemetry and Acute Care Services (ACS)
Page 14 of 14

PROGRESSIVE CARE UNIT ACT TASK LIST

0Oo0o0oo o

(mpy ]

Beginning of the Shift Checklist

a Print Census, receive hand-off from RNs
a Obtain the following from RNs

Diet

Ambulatory needs

Code Status

Isolation Precautions

Bath Assignment

% Check with RN if patient

requires a shower or
assistance

v Special Considerations

Hard of Hearing

Legally Blind

No BP on Left or Right Arm

Restraints

Fall Risk

Pressure Ulcers

AN N NN

VVVVVYV

Vital Signs
Vitals Signs
= Complete vital signs as directed by RN
= Document results on VSS worksheet
= Give a copy to each RN to review prior to
documenting
= Routine VSS
«» Tele patients every 4 hours while
awake
% Med/Surg patients every 8 or once a
shift as directed by RN

Before Meal Trays Arrive
Document vitals and assist with answering
call lights and the telephone
Perform additional duties as directed by RN

Arrival of Meal Trays
Ensure unapproved items are removed from
tray as directed by Correctional Officers
Pass trays and assist with answering lights
Assist feeders as directed, if no feeders, go
to break or document VSS and | & O’s

After meal times
Complete documentation
Ambulate patients
Answer call lights and the telephone
Assist RNs as directed

Intake and Output
Document output after completing task
Document intake as soon as possible

Ooooc0oOo

o

O

AN

Prior to Leaving Patient Rooms

Remove all items taken in room

Discarded items in proper container

Patient’s room clean, call button within reach
Upper side rails up

Water pitcher refilled per unit policy and/or as
directed by RN

Patient information signs posted per RN

End of Shift Checklist
Inform RNs of task not completed as soon as
possible
I/Os documented
Vital Signs documented
Activity of Daily Living documented

Admission Checklist

Assist RN as directed
If patient is ambulatory, use chair scale
Ask patient for their height or estimate (verify with
RN)
Obtain admission vital signs as directed by RN
Verify with RN or Correctional Officers items to
place in patient’s room (see the suggested item list
below):
Pitcher of water and cup, if not NPO
Box of tissue
Toothbrush and toothpaste
Plastic comb
Slippers
Place a urinal or “hat” in the bathroom
Label urinal or hat with patient’s name and
room number, if not contraindicated
Before leaving the room complete the following as
directed by the RN:

> Instruct patient how to use the call button

and place it near the patient
> Instruct patient how to use to the bedside
lights, TV remote, and bed controls

> Place bedside table within reach of patient

Document the patient's WT, HT, and vital signs

VVVVVVYVY

Discharge Checklist
Do not discuss discharge plans or expected time of
discharge with patient.
Assist with discharges directed by RN, ANM, or
Correctional Officers
Ensure vital signs including pulse oximetry are
obtained at least one (1) hour prior to discharge
Inform RN of VSS results after completing the task

28




(c“} Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: NEW \ SUBJECT: Alcohol Withdrawal Symptom

Management
REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 04/16
Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval Date(s): 05/16
Nurse Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 05/16
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval Date(s): n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 06/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A DEFINITION(S):

1. Alcohol Use Disorders Identification Test (Audit-C): is a 3-item alcohol screen that can help
identify person who are hazardous drinkers or have active alcohol use disorders. Generally, the
higher the AUDIT-C score, the more likely it is that the patient’s drinking is affecting their
health and safety.

2. Clinical Institute Withdrawal Assessment Scale for Alcohol Revised (CIWA-Ar): at 10-item scale
for assessment and management of alcohol withdrawal. A summation of the scores correlates
to the severity of alcohol withdrawal.

B. POLICY:
1. All patients shall be screened for alcohol use on admission
a. If a patient is identified on admission as currently consuming alcohol which puts them at
risk for experiencing alcohol withdrawal symptoms during hospitalization the nurse will
discuss with physician and obtain orders for management of withdrawal symptoms.
2. Patients shall be assessed each shift for signs/symptoms of alcohol withdrawal
a. If patient exhibits signs/symptoms of alcohol withdrawal, the patient will be assessed

using the CIWA-Ar scale.
i. Based on the CIWA-Ar score, the nurse will contact physician and obtain orders
for management of withdrawal symptoms.
3. If a patient has a CIWA score of greater than or equal to 8, the patient requires a more frequent
monitoring and a higher level of care (ie: Telemetry or Intensive Care Unit).

C. PROCEDURE:
1. Screen the patient for alcohol use by completing the Audit-C screen in the electronic

health record (EHR) upon admission.

a. If a patient scores less than 5, monitor patient for signs and symptoms of alcohol
withdrawal with shift assessments and reassessments.

b. If a patient scores greater than or equal to 5:;-the-results-are-positive.
i. Ask 3 additional screening questions.
. Initiate the Adult Alcohol Withdrawal Interdisciplinary Plan of Care (IPOC).
iii. Complete the CIWA-Ar in the EHR.

2. CIWA-Ar scores upon admission or during shift assessment,
a. If the CIWA- Ar is less than 8:
i. Notify the MD of the positive Audit-C and or CIWA-Ar scores within 24
hours.

29



Patient Care Services
Alcohol Withdrawa! Symptom Management
Page 2 of 3

ii. Continue CIWA-Ar reassessment every 4 hours times 72 hours.
3-ii.  If the patient has 3 consecutive CIWA-Ar scores less than 8, monitor every
shift for signs and symptoms of alcohol withdrawal.
a-b. If the CIWA-Ar score is greater than or equal to 8:
i. Request a higher level of care (i.e. Telemetry or Intensive Care Unit) bed.
i, Contact MD to request treatment plan if none present.
iiii. Monitor CIWA-Ar every 2 hours times 72 hours.

iv. Additional requirements for Intravenous (IV) Lorazepam
1) Assess prior to and 1 hour after administration
a) CIWA-Ar
b) Vital signs
c) Oxygen saturation per Pulse Oximetry

d) Richmond Agitation Scale Score (RASS)

| &-D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Alcohol Withdrawal Algorithm




s,1Q jo swoldwAs
/suss suqiyxa juaned (z
28ued joIno
34 31035 SSyY 10 sudis |euA (T
A Ajnon

{9T02/¥0 "raY)

oN N,
vs
s Y el . Jemelpyim Jo s/s
— pu3 . Jo Supoyuow Yiys o
86 )
¢8 <534038 N
— SBA
AAINIASUOD £ 3ALY “1d Al
$30p SN0 ZL A WIYIM /
. N
\ /
7 AN
p v N\
. /' ¢hexs jeudsoy upinp N
7 emepmgoss
AN N s ¢
P . e /// N Sa a e
SIHZL X SIH 2D o as S AN P
¥V-YMID JoNuo  — oN N dpammal 79 N
0} anunuo) ~ Sepio :uE\ s ‘SIH 2LX SIH YD e
/// P JuBWISSassedl YyY-YMID oA
e 3NUNUOD 1§ SIH B2 W/Mm
| sa103s Yyy-vMmIDd 40/
JUPNY4 40 AN AfioN |
a8 [ | vE
uopensIuwpE hu:n_m R _ SjuaWSsasseal
. M._”__“__ =m E\B n..m doyd | A | g sjuswssasse
pue ._xD_WM_:a wwm>m.w<<= S3A e e
- 0031 }SNus NoA m_u - Jo swojdutAs g sufs
VMID P ¥ ued x| o J0)jUCw 0] NUHUOD
LAY wedazelon Al jl 1sanbai 01 QW PRIOD oN
H ON
/ ]
/N N h S
\. ;13
o ¥ y [ luv-vmio) z
y . a9 . as n uawssasse |
RIPYUIM | =
aL / AN P39 NI _ i ay el l 16 Ta1035 N
1p _& Jpasapioveid samog  d—— o a1 ¢B<asons e ueld <4 | o < aaisod e aney
Jusuneal] ang _ \ HOL3 e aaey Apease / Jsanbay YY-YMID 343 sep _ 2183 HOL3 akeNiu| o/ Juaned ayy seoq
\ Juaped ays saoq . v | suoiisanD SaA
524 N P S3A \ _ Buuaass
N . . = " |euopippe g sy
’ N\
¥ A

wEo3|Y [EMEIPYIM |0YOOIY

T
uaa13s J-ypny 23a|dwoy
uaissiwpy Jualied

ﬁ yes

¢ jo ¢ abeqd
juawabeuepy WOIdWAS [EMBIDYIAA {0YO2)Y
SaDIAIBS aJB) JuBled

31



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 12/01 SUBJECT: Chain of Command
REVISION DATE: 6/03; 12/04; 10/05, 3/10; 6/13 POLICY NUMBER: I.J
Department Approval Date(s): 04/16
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 03/1305/16
Nurse Executive Council Approval: 03/14305/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 05/14306/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 06/13
Board of Directors Approval: 06/13
A. PURPOSE:

1. Chain of Command provides employees an expeditious process to resolve administrative, clinical,

or other patient safety or service issues in order to provide safe patient care. All employees are
encouraged to use the chain of command to present an issue of concern and pass it up the lines
of authority until a resolution is reached. In situations where the safety of the patient or of
employees, visitors, and others does not allow time for use of the chain of command, employees
shall take the concern to the highest level he/she deems necessary.

POLICY:

1. Tri-City Medical Center will not tolerate any acts of reprisal against those who raise issues
concerning quality patient care.

2. All health care providers (HCP) are responsible for ensuring that patients receive quality care and
should implement chain of command to obtain necessary patient care interventions when the
quality of care or safety of a patient is in question.

3. Examples of when to implement the chain of command may include but are not limited to the
following:

a. A conflict exists concerning the plan of care/physician orders for the patient.

b. The plan of care is unclear and caregiver is unable to get clarification from physician.

C. Qualified care professional providers are unavailable: Registered Nurses (RNs),
physicians, and other essential care providers.

d. Unprofessional behavior by or impairment of the healthcare providers that jeopardize
patient care.

e. Instances where a physician has not responded in a timely manner to a deteriorating
patient condition.

f. The RNs assessment of the patient varies significantly from physician’s assessment.

g. In clinical situations where the RN believes the physician has not responded in @ manner
to fully address the issues raised that may present an immediate risk to the patient.

4, The next level of authority shall be contacted if issues are not resolved in an appropriate time
frame. Progression continues through the levels of authority until the issue is resolved.

a. In some instances, one or more levels may be passed over due to extremely sensitive
subjects or when the higher level of authority may be the individual involved.

5. For conflicts that cannot be resolved between employees related to patient care/safety issues, the

order in which the lines of authority shall be contacted are as follows:

a. The employees shall attempt to address and resolve conflict outside of the patient care
area.

b. If unresolved, then the Assistant Nurse Manager is notified.

C. If unresolved, then the Clinical Manager and/or Administrative Supervisor is notified.

32



| Patient Care Services Relisy-Manaual

Chain of Command
| Page2of2

7.

d. If unresolved, then the Director is notified.
e. If unresolved, then the Senior Director is notified.
f. If unresolved, then the Chief Nurse Executive (CNE) is notified.

For conflicts involving physicians/Allied Health Professionals, the order in which the lines of
authority shall be contacted upon initiation of chain of command is as follows:

a. The HCP shall contact the Assistant Nurse Manager in a confidential manner to express
concerns.

b. If unresolved, the Clinical Manager and/or Administrative Supervisor is notified.

C. If unresolved, the Director is notified.

d. If unresolved, the Senior Director is notified.

e. If unresolved, the Senior Executive, or if unavailable the Administrator on-call is notified.

f. If unresolved, the Medical Director of the identified department is notified.

g. If unresolved, the Chief Of Medical Staff is notified

h. If unresolved, the President/Chief Executive Officer is notified.

The Administrative Supervisor is available as a resource when contacting all levels of authority.

C.  DOCUMENTATION:
1.

2.

The HCP shall document the following in the medical record under clinical notes without including
personal opinions:

a. Date, time, and name of person contacted
b. Events and observations objectively as they occur
C. Specific facts and accurate times

Quality review report (QRR) shall be completed and submitted to Risk Management.

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

2.

Administrative Policy: Incident Report — Quality Review Report (QRR) RL Solutions 396

33



@‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICESPOLIGY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 12/01 SUBJECT: Emergency Cart, Cardiopulmonary
Arrest

REVISION DATE: 6/03, 10/04, 11/06, 10/07; 6/08; 8/09; POLICY NUMBER: V.0

8/12

Department Approval Date(s) 03/16

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 06/1205/16
Nursing Executive Council Approval: 06/1205/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 07/4206/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 08/12

Board of Directors Approval: 08/12

A. POLICY:

1. Emergency Carts shall be checked at least daily for integrity and expiring products by a licensed

healthcare provider or designeeemergensytechnician on the unit. This is documented by date,
shift, and S|gnatures in a Iogbook kept on top of the cart.

b. The licensed healthcare provider or designee checking cart will ensure-that
missing items are replaced immediately. If items cannot be replaced in a timely
manner, the cart should be replaced by the Sterile Processing Department (SPD).

Emergency Carts shall be stored in a visible or secure location.

SPD shall immediately replace any cart used during a Code Blue, Code Caleb or Code Pink.

a. After a code, one (1) green-lock is used to lock the cart before it is returned to SPD for
cleaning.

b. The used crash cart shall remain outside-of-the patient'sroom; locked and monitored
until it is returned to the SPD.

4, The Code Blue Committee shall make recommendations for content changes based on code
evaluations and recommendations from the American Heart Association.

w N

B. PROCEDURE FOR CHECKING CODE BLUE, CODE PINK AND CODE CALEB EMERGENCY
CARTS:

1. All documentation of cart checks is completed on the department specific Emergency
Equment/Suplees Checkllst AII fields must be completed and the document signed.

a. Check Ithe mtegnty of all Iocksltagsand If anythe Iockltag is broken call SPD to
replace the cart.
i. Adult cart document:
1) theLock number efthe+edHoesk-on the locking bar on the Emergency

Cart.
Hi. Pediatric cart document:
1) Medication drawer expiration date and lock number
2) IV drawer expiration date and lock number

b-3) Red Airway Bag expiration date and lock number
iii. Neonatal Crash Cart

1) Medication drawer expiration date and lock number

&:2) |V drawer expiration date and lock number

34



Patient Care Services
Emergency Cart, Cardiopulmonary Arrest

Page 2 of 4

d-b.

e-C.

£d.

g-f.

Ri.

i

ik.

2

Check Tthe medication sticker ferand document medication expiration datecutdated
i. Notify Pharmacy of expired medications.

Check non-medication supply sticker(s) and document the The-SRD-stickerfor
expiration dates.

i. Notify SPD if any supplies are expired.

Presence and function of suction equipment (except for Neonatal Crash Cart).
Presence of Resuscitation Code Gardiopulmonary-Arrest-Record and
Evaluation/Debriefing form on clipboard appropriate to type of cart (adult, pediatric,
neonatal).

Resuscitation algorithms appropriate for type of cart (adult, pediatric, neonatal).
The inventory lists and-ACLS-algerithms-attached to side of cart.

i. The list is maintained and updated by SPD.

One pack of ECG electrodes (three pack).

Defibrillator or AED pads appropriate for type of cart (except for Neonatal Crash
Cart), Ensure pads are not expired.

Presence of resuscitation bag (Ambu) and supplies appropriate for type of cart (aduit,
pediatric, neonatal).

i Check the mask to iensure the seal is sufficiently inflated.

Presence of oxygen tank (except for Neonatal Crash Cart).

i. Replace tank if gauge reads 1000 p.s.i. or less.

Presence of extension cord/multi-outlet cord.

Presence of backboard (except for Neonatal Crash Cart).

For Pediatric/Broselow Cart only:

i. Scissors

Lii. Two (2) Alaris Pumps

Fc;r units with defibrillators, check defibrillator for proper functioning.

a.

b.

a-C.

b-d.

— - a

Check unit cleanliness and inspect cables and connectors for integrity.

i. ECG electrodes should not be pre-attached to the leads.

Ensure that you have a charged battery in the unit — testing will be performed with

the unit unplugged from the power supply.

Verify adult paddles are installed and are pushed all the away into their holders on the

side of the M series unit.

Ensure the Multi-Function Cable is plugged into the unit.

i. The Multi-Function Cable Funetion should not be plugged into the test
connector.

Switch to monitor, listen for four beep tone. The message MONITOR should

display.

i. If you need to adjust the time or date on the unit, depress the softkey on
the far right prior to switching to MONITOR and adjust as needed (this
should be performed every two weeks).

Switch to PACER and set to a rate of 150 per minute.

Press recorder button.

Pacer pulses occur every two large divisions.

Press 4:1 button, pulses occur every 8 large divisions.

Stop recorder

i. Note that signing, dating and retaining the recorder output is not a
requirement.

Set PACER OUTPUT to 0 mA and ensure that there is no CHECK PADS message.

Set PACER OUTPUT to 16 mA and ensure that there is a CHECK PADS message

and alarm.

Connect multifunction cable to test connector,

35



Patient Care Services
Emergency Cart, Cardiopulmonary Arrest
Page 3 of 4

n. Press Clear Pace Alarm softkey; CHECK PADS message will disappear and pace
alarm stops.
0. Disconnect multifunction cable from test connector,
e-p.  Switch unit to DEFIB and set energy to 30 joules
i. The messages CHECK PADS and POOR PAD CONTACTS will alternately
display.
é-q. Plug the Multi-Function Cable into its test connector.
i The message DEFIB PAD SHORT will display.
e-r.  Press the CHARGE button on the front panel or on the apex paddle handle.
£s. Wait for the charge read tone to sound and verify that the energy ready value displayed
on the monitor registers 30 joules.
i. The message will read DEFIB 30J READY
ii. The strip chart recorder will print a short strip indicating TEST OK energy
delivered if the unit delivered energy within specifications. . Note that signing,
dating and retaining the recorder output is not a requirement.
4iii. During the Energy Delivery Test, unit will only discharge when energy level is set
to 30 joules.
iv. If TEST FAILED appears, contact Clinical Engineering (Biomed) or ZOLL
Technical Service Department immediately.
iit.  Plug device back into the electrical socket after testing is complete.
3. For units with Automatic External Defibrillators (AED):
a. Check unit for flashing hourglass
i. If hourglass is not visible or not flashing, notify Clinical Engineering immediately.
b. HouseWide AED’s are checked daily by Security Staff.

e Chegkbpiferfleshing-howrgless

C. RELATED DOCUMENTSFerms-available-on-the-lntranet:

1. Adult-Emergency Equipment/Supplies (Crash Cart) Checklist SampleCart—Unit-Specific
2 DBeaslow-Coe

2. Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Rapid Response Team

3. PCS Procedure: Malignant Hyperthermia Management

34. Women & Newborn Procedure: Obstetrical (OB) Hemorrhage

36



wasald = A
:puaday

LYVD ONBIDIHD
NOSH3d 40 FHNLYNOIS

AVYL
NOILVENLINI TVINIWIIddNS

{aun uopons yam

1enwyuuy pur 3ugm) 531 ddng uoINg

Asueg
woua (e jodos o) YINYNIIVd

{vimp drw]

w2l €X §AVd NOILONNGILINW

G3XI3IHI AY3Llve 81330

{roe 30) g3DONMIINN
0399n1d Q31531 81430

1SIm ¢

ayvoendve

QY¥0J L131LNO/NOISNILXI

tooot<1sal SYNVL “O

SINddNS/SOVENANY

{pede)
$3p0.13913 9I3

S1SIT ABOLN3ANI LYVD

SWHLIHO9TY NOILVLIDSNSIY

SIVAI '8 SQHOD3Y
15348V AHYNOWINGOIQUYD

Q31531 LINN NOILDNS

31vA NOILVHIdXT LYVD

31va NOLLYHIdX3
HIMVHQA NOILVIIQIW

{Aup snajasd way peBuRIRUR J) R PBYD)
#3201G34

e o |6z | se ez |ot|se|ve|se|ez|tz|oz|er |srjex|on|st|on|et|ex|tt|or| 6|8 TVYINIO
YA/HLNOW TTJAVS - LSITIDIHD LIVD HSVHED YAINHD TVOIAdW ALID-TIL JLAIHS
t 40 p abed

1sauy Aseuowyndoipien ‘peq Aouabiawg

se91AI9G ale) Juaned

37



‘c\)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES-POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 03/09 SUBJECT: Family Presence During
Resuscitation
REVISION DATE: 01/12 POLICY NUMBER: IV.PP
Department Approval Date(s): 04/16
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 09/4105/16
Nursing Executive Council Approval: 40/1105/16
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 41/11406/16
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 01/12
Board of Directors Approval: 01/12
A. DEFINITIONS:
1. Family Presence: The presence of family in the patient care area in a location that affords visual
or physical contact with the patient during resuscitation events.
2. Resuscitation: A sequence of events, which are initiated to sustain life or prevent further
deterioration of the patient’s condition.
3. Family: A relative of the patient or any significant other with whom the patient shares an
established relationship.
4, Family Support Person Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) employees including:

Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM)

Staff Registered Nurse (RN)

Chaplain

Social Worker

Administrative Supervisor or other designee who is assigned to the family of a patient
during a resuscitation event and assumes no direct care responsibilities for the patient.
During day shift hours the Family Support Person role will be fulfilled by a chaplain or
social worker, or if unavailable, the ANM or his/her designee. During night shift hours the
Family Support Person role will be fulfilled by the Administrative Supervisor, ANM, or
his/her designee.

©caooTD

PURPOSE:

1. To assure patient and families are provided care consistent with the philosophy of patient/family-
centered care and established emergency care standards.
a. Supportive data:

i. The family is a constant in the patient’s life. Family participation and involvement in
the patient’s health care promotes collaborative relationships among the patient,
family and health care professionals. The strengths and coping strategies of the
family are supported and incorporated into the care of the patient.

POLICY:
1. Patient & Family Assessment
a. Family members shall be assessed by the primary Registered Nurse (RN) or designee

for the appropriate levels of coping, desires and needs.

i. In addition, family members should demonstrate the absence of combative or
threatening behavior, extreme emotional volatility, and behaviors consistent with
an altered mental status related to drugs or alcohol.

1) Family members demonstrating such behavior are not candidates for family
presence.

38



| Patient Care Services-Policy-Manual
Family Presence During Resuscitation

| Page2o0f3

ii. Children must have an adult caregiver present to be aliowed at the bedside.

b. Cultural customs shall be considered and assessed. Healthcare providers shall maintain
an awareness of cultural variations and be sensitive to these factors and family needs.

C. Decision to initiate family presence is dependent upon criteria consisting of three
components:
i. Patient’s desire to have family with them
ii. Family's desire to be present
ii. Agreement of the direct care providers

d. Family members who do not wish to participate shall be supported in their decision
without judgment and the family support person shall remain with them.

e. When a resuscitation event is ea#ed—announced a Fam|ly Support Person shall be

f. The family support person shall ldent|fy the primary RN and ask if the family can be
present.

2. Preparation/Participation of Family Presence
a. The family support person shall explain the patient’'s appearance, treatments and

equipment used in layman’s language and shall prepare the family for entering the

patient’s room, including:-

i. Communicating that the patient is the priority.

ii. Explaining how many family members may enter the room safely, where they may
stand initially, when they shall be able to move to the bedside and what not to
touch to prevent injury.

iii. Explaining and adhering to appropriate infection control measures if thelf

patlent is in |solat|on or contact precautions;-the-appropriate-measures-shall-be

iv. Preparinge-the family members for the sights and sounds of resuscitation.

V. Clearly informing the family shall-be-clearly-informed of the status of their loved
one at all times.

vi. Explaining why the family they may be asked to step out of the room and when
they can leave the room.

vii. InformingThe-family-suppert-person-shallinform the health care providers of the
presence of the family.

viii. RemainingThe-family-support-persen-must-remain with the family at all times
during the resuscitation.

iX. Escorting the familyThe-health-care-providers-can-retain-the-option-to-request
that-the family be-escorted- from the bedside and/or out of the room if deemed
necessary by the health care providers.

3. Post-Code Follow-Up

| a.

Immediately following the resuscitation event, the Family Support Person shall meet with

and debrief the family regarding circumstances of the resuscitation event and the

outcome.

Patient survives resuscitation efforts with good prognosis

i. Patient/family orientation to the Intensive Care Unit (ICU)

ii. Procedures/test fully explained and all parties updated per primary care
RN/Primary physician on an on-going basis.

iii. Transfer to ICU

Patient survives with poor prognosis

i. Discussion initiated with family regarding comfort measures, hospice, etc.

1) Hospitality cart ordered for family
2) Chaplain Services as appropriate
3) Open Visitation

ii. Life sharing referral initiated
Patient Expires

39



| Patient Care Services-Pelicy-Manual

Family Presence During Resuscitation

| Page3of3

i. End of Life process explained to family per primary care RN/ancillary staff (i.e.,
Chaplain, Social Worker, and Administrative Supervisor).

i Life-Sharing notified of expiration.

iii. Family allowed private time in room.

iv. Required paperwerkdocumentation completed; patient representative phone
number given when necessary.

V. Grieving pamphlet offered to family.

i. Sympathy card mailed to family within 24-48 hours of expiration.

ii. Follow-up phone call/survey completed regarding family who witnessed the
resuscitation event.

D. REFERENCES:

American Association of Critical Care Nurses (AACN). (26042016). Practice alert: Family
pPresence dDuring Resuscitation CPR-and ilnvasive pProcedures. Retrieved May 9,2016
Ma;eh—34,—2—99¥, from

1.

3:2.

8-5.

9:6.

ment#a%ert http: llwww aacn. orglwdlpractlceldocs/practlcealertslfamlIy-presence-dunng-
resus1tat|on-and -invasive-procedures- pa-2015 pdf

Davidson, J. E., Powers, K. S., Hedayat, K. M., Tieszen, M., Kon, A. A., Shepard, E., et al.
(2007). Clinical practice guidelines for support of the family in the patient-centered intensive care
unit. American College of Critical Care Medicine Task Force 2004-2005. Critical Care Medicine,
35(2) 605 622

Emergency Nurses Assocnatlon (2007) Presenting the Option for Family Presence (3" Edition).

Guzzetta, C. E., Clark, A. P., & Halm, M. A. (2008). Family presence facilitation. In E. Ackley, G.
Ladwid, B. A. Swan, & S. Tucker (Eds.), Evidence-based nursing care guidelines. Philadelphia:

Elsevier.

Mlan P., Warchal S Whltney, S, Fltzmaurlce J & Tancredn D. (2007) Impact ofa
multlfaceted intervention on nurses’ and physnmans behaviors toward family presence during
resuscitation. Critical Care Nurse, 27(1), 52-61.

Oczkowski, S.J.W., Mazzetti, I., Cupido, C., Fox-Robichaud, A. E. (July/August 2015).
Family Presence During Resuscitation: A Canadian Critical Care Society Position Paper.
Canadian Respiratory Journal, 22(4), 201-205.

Porter, J. E., Cooper, S. J., Sellick, K. (2014). Family Presence During Resuscitation
(FPDR): Perceived Benefits, Barriers and Enablers to Implementation and Practice.
International Emergency Nursing, 22(2), 69-74.

Beesley, S.J., Hopkins, R. O,, Francis, L., Chapman, D., Johnson, N., & Brown, S. M. (April
2016). Let Them In: Family Presence During Intensive Care Unit Procedures. American
Thoracic Society.

40



Distribution: Patient Care Services

(C‘“) Tri-City Medical Center
PROCEDURE: POSTURAL (ORTHOSTATIC) VITAL SIGNS, OBTAINING

Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibilities when obtaining postural (orthostatic) vital signs.
Supportive Data:  Abnormal postural vital signs may indicate intravascular volume depletion, fluid loss,
inadequate vasoconstriction, cardiac dysrhythmias or autonomic insufficiency secondary
to the administration of pharmacological agents.

Manual blood pressure cuff and stethoscope or automatic blood pressure machine

Equipment:

A DEFINITIONS:

1. Postural (oOrthostatic) hHypotension: occurs when the systolic blood pressure (S-BP) or
blood pressure (BP) drops after a change in position from supine posture to upright posture.
is-assumed: Orthostatic instability usually takes place within one (1) minute. Heart rate (HR) may
increase with a fall in BP.

a. Normal postural changes include the following:
i. HR increases by 5 to 20 beats per minute transiently
ii. Systolic BP (SBP) drops 10 mm Hg
iii. Diastolic BP (DBP) drops 5 mm Hg
iv. Patient has no presenting symptoms
b. Positive postural (orthostasis)tic changes include the following:
i. Drop in SBP by more than 20 mm Hg
ii. Drop in DBP by more than 10 mm Hg within 3 minutes
iii. HR may increase by 15-30 beats per minute with a fall in BP
iv. Patient presents or complains of one or more of the following symptoms:
1) Dizziness
2) Lightheadedness
3) Cardiac rhythm changes

4) Syncope
B. POLICY:
1. Postural (orthostatic) vital signs shall be obtained with the patient in the following three positions;
supine, sitting and standing unless contraindicated.
a. For pregnant patients, ensure lateral hip wedge is used.

2. Postural (orthostatic) vital signs shall consist of three-bloed-pressure-BP readings and three-heart
rates taken in each-efthe-three positions i.e., supine, sitting, and standing.

2:3.  Itis important to obtain a complete set of postural vital signs before changing the patient’s
position.
3-4. The blood pressure cuff shall not be removed between position changes.
5. Obtaining accurate BP readings includes the following:
a. Compare right and left measurements
b. Position the extremity at the level of the heart
c. Document the position of the patient
d. Ensure proper cuff size
4.e. Measure readings at eye level at the top of the meniscus for manual readings.
C. PROCEDURE:
1. Select appropriate blood pressure cuff size,
a. A cuff that is too small may result in a false high result.
b. A cuff that is too large may result in a false low result.
2. At any time during procedure, if patient exhibits positive orthostatic changes, return patient to
supine position and notify physician.
3. Perform hand hygiene and don gloves as needed.
. Clinical Policies & . Medical Executive Professional .
Department Review Procedures Garehétg:‘?“ Iiit)t(::utlve Committee Aff airr.; %so r:rrr‘l?ttee Board of Directors
12194, 6109:6/12; 7112; 12115 8/12, 01116 8/12, 6116 912 912




| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Postural/Orthostatic Vital Signs, Obtaining

Page 2 of 2

4.

8-7.

Ask-patienttolie-Position patient in the supine position (flat) for 10 minutes before taking initial

vital signs.

a. If the patient cannot tolerate a supine position, lower the head of bed per patient’s
tolerance.

&:b. Obtain supine BP and HR measurements.

a-c. This reading is considered the initial baseline measurement.

Position patient in the sitting position with legs hanging. and

6-a. Oebtain BP and HR measurement immediately and after 2 minutes.

Assist patient to standing position. ard

+a. o0btain BP and HR measurements immediately and after 2 minutes.

ab. If BP and HR are stable but orthostasis is suspected, repeat BP and HR in 2 minutes.

The physician should be notified if patient has positive orthostatic changes.

a. On cardiac monitoring units, notify physician of patient's cardiac rhythm

D. DOCUMENTATION:

1.

2.

Document the following on the
medical record.
a. Patient’s position
b. BP and HR in each position
i. Cardiac rhythm on cardiac monitoring units
C. Patient’s associated signs and symptoms
Document physician/Allied Health Professional notification of any positive orthostatic changes.

REFERENCES

Urden LD Stacy, K M., &Lough M, E. (2014686). Critical care nursing: Diagnosis and
management (7" ed). Cardlovascular Clinical Assessment, Chapter13 Elsevier. St. Louis,
MO.Thelan's-critical-care-pursing: Diagnosis-and-management{(5™ -ed}—CardiovaseularClinical
Assessment—Chapter16—Elsevier—StLouis:MO-

42



(c?)) Tri-City Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services
PROCEDURE: STOOL MANAGEMENT (RECTAL TUBE) DIGNICARE STOOL MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM
Purpose: To define the appropriate use, initiation and management of the DigniCare® Stool
Management System (SMS). The DigniCare® “is intended for fecal management by
diverting and collecting liquid or semi-liquid stool to minimize skin contact in bedridden
patients. This may help to reduce patient’s risk of skin breakdown, minimize exposure to
infectious microorganisms and save nursing time and hospital costs associated with bed
linen changes and cleanup” (Bard), 2009)
Equipment: 1. Gloves
2. 45 mL tap water
3. Cavilon Skin Barrier
4, Cavilion Skin Sealant
5. Collection Bag
6. DigniCare®SMS Insertion Tray
a. Rectal tube assembly (closed system), self-locking collection bag with drainage
plug
b. 60 mL syringe
c. Underpad
d. 10 mL water-soluble lubricating jelly syringe
e. 10z MEDI-AIRE® biological odor eliminator
f. Instructions for use
A. CONTRAINDICATIONS:

1. Do not use for more than 29 consecutive days.

2. Do not use on patients known to be sensitive to or allergic to any components within the system.

3. Do not use on patients who have large bowel or rectal surgery within the last year.

4, Do not use on patients with any rectal or anal injury, severe rectal or anal stricture or stenosis (or
on any patient if the distal rectum cannot accommodate the inflated cuff), confirmed rectal or anal
tumor, severe hemorrhoids, or fecal impaction.

5. Not for use in patients with suspected or confirmed rectal mucosa impairment (i.e. severe
proctitis, ischemic proctitis, mucosal ulcerations).

6. Not for use in patients with indwelling rectal or anal devices (i.e. thermometer) or delivery
mechanism (i.e. suppositories) or enemas in place.

7. Not for use in neutropenic patients with absolute neutrophil count (ANC) less than 500.

8. Do not use for patients with solid or soft-formed stool.

POLICY:

1. A physician’s order is required for initiation of the DigniCare® SMS.

2. A Registered Nurse (RN) shall be responsible for initiation and managing the DigniCare SMS.

3. Product is for single use only.

4 Indications for use include the following:

a. Critically ill patient

b. Functional rectal sphincter

c. Frequent episodes of liquid to semi-liquid stool

d. Protection of medical devices or wound dressing which will become compromised by fecal
contact

e. Management of infectious or potentially infectious stool

f. Collection of liquid to semi-solid stool in the medical/surgical patient who requires stool

containment for:

Department Review

Clinical Policies &
Procedures

Nurse Executive
Council

Medical Executive
Committee

Professional
Affairs Committee

Board of Directors

10/11, 04/16

11/11, 05/16

11/11, 05/16

112, 6116

2112

2112




| Patient Care Services Presedure-Manual
Stool Management (Rectal Tube) Dignicare Stool Management System

Page 2 of 5
i. Protection of skin and prevention of pressure ulcers in the incontinent patient
ii. Stool control and diversion
5. Discontinue SMS when the patient’s bowel control, consistency and frequency of stool begin to
return to normal.
6. Care should be used in patients with the following diseases or conditions:
a. Inflammatory Bowel Disease
i. The physician shall determine the degree and location of the acute inflammation
prior to use of the device.
b. Anti-coagulant/anti-platelet therapy
c. Colon or rectal surgery of anastomosis prior to initiation
i. Consider site of anastomosis prior to initiation
d. Hemorrhoids
7. Do not insert devices such as thermometers or suppositories into the anal canal while the device
is in place.
8. Do not connect mechanical pumping devices to catheter irrigation port.
9. Rectal bleeding should be investigated to ensure no evidence of pressure necrosis from the

device, discontinuation of the device is recommended if evident.
10. Abdominal distention that occurs while using the device should be investigated.
11. Excessive prolonged traction on the catheter may result in the retention cuff migrating into the

anal canal which may result in temporary or permanent clinical sphincter dysfunction, or catheter
expulsion.

12. Notify a physician if any of the following occur:
a. Rectal pain
b. Rectal bleeding
C. Abdominal symptoms such as distension or pain

C. PROCEDURE:
1. The DIGNICARE® SMS has three drainage tube ports which are labeled as outlined below:

Label Port Color Label Definition
INF (45mL) | Green (matches the cuff Inflation port for retention cuff specifies
color) recommended inflation volume and inflation
medium.

o The green inflation port is used for cuff
inflation to ensure proper cuff seating in
the rectal vaulit.

FLUSH Purple Flush port for clearance of drain tube only

¢ The purple flush port is designed to flush
the rectal tubing via the 8 outlet tubes
(located throughout the main tubing) for
irrigation (as needed) throughout the stool
management system’s use.

IRRG Clear Irrigation port infuses water into rectum

o The clear irrigation port is used to irrigate
the patient’s bowel to break-up stool (as
needed)

o To verify proper cuff placement during
initial insertion, as well as throughout the
stool management system’s use.

2. Insertion of the DigniCare® SMS
a. Perform hand hygiene and don gloves.



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Stool Management (Rectal Tube) Dignicare Stool Management System

Page 30of §

b. Explain the procedure to patient.
C. Open DIGNICARE® SMS Insertion Tray. ldentify cuff end. Identify ball valve end.
d. Ensure green “door” on ball valve is in closed position with the green latch pointed back

towards the hanger. Connect collection bag to catheter as follows:
i. Holding collar on collection bag upright with non-dominant hand, align the valve
latch with the groove on bag collar and insert.

ii. Turn ball valve clockwise until fully (snaps into place) engaged.

e. Locate green inflation port and align with the tubing to ensure patency. Connect syringe
(included) to port and pull back slowly on plunger to remove all air from DIGNICARE®
SMS inflation cuff. Remove syringe.
i. Ensure cuff is fully deflated.

f. Draw 45 mL of tap water into 60 mL syringe and connect to inflation port. DO NOT
INSTILL!
g. Unfold and Position tubing of catheter lengthwise on bed, extending collection bag

towards the foot of the bed, and assure tubing is not coiled or kinked.
h. Attach 60 mL syringe with 45 mL tap water to the inflation port but do not inflate.
i. Position patient (left side lying) and place absorbent pad under patient.
i. The preferred patient position for catheter insertion is the left lateral knee-chest
position, to maximize sphincter relaxation to ease catheter insertion.
ii. Position patient based on their clinical situation.

j- Perform a digital rectal exam to assess for fecal impaction.
i. If fecal impaction is present, patient should be disimpacted before insertion of the
DigniCare® SMS.
K. Lubricate patient’s anus (lubricant included in tray).

l. Insert the inflation cuff as follows:
i. Squeeze the inflation cuff to ensure all air has been removed and hold the cuff flat
in order to fold for insertion.
ii. Holding the left point of the cuff between the thumb and index finger, fold the top
right point of the cuff down and to the left in a 45 degree angle (this creates a
conical shape with a leading edge for easy insertion).
iii. Generously coat the cuff end on the catheter with the lubricating jelly.

iv. Gently insert the cuff end through the anal sphincter until the cuff is beyond the
external orifice and well inside the rectal vault.
m. Slowly instill 45 mL of tap water (previously drawn up) into cuff and disconnect syringe.

i. Do not over inflate.
ii. Use the external pilot balloon as a guide to determine proper inflation.

1) The pilot balloon indicates over or under inflation.

2) Use the syringe to withdraw the fluid from the cuff, reposition the cuff in
rectal vault and re-inflate.

3) Ensure the inflation port remains parallel to the catheter in order to prevent

kinking of the inflation lumen and blockage of injected fluid.
Gently tug on the tubing to “seat” cuff completely in rectal vault.
Note where black position indicator line is in relation to the rectum.
Locate irrigation port. Irrigate with tap water to determine patency.
Locate purple flush port. This port is designed to flush and clear tubing only. Flush tubing
at least twice per shift and as needed.
Hang the collection bag by the hanger and secure to bed (lower than patient) and position
rectal tubing alongside patient. Do not place collection bag on the floor.
Care and Maintenance of the DigniCare® SMS
a. Assess patient every shift and PRN for indications to continue DigniCare® SMS.
b. Verify proper cuff placement every shift and PRN.
C. Assess cuff volume every shift and PRN to ensure proper inflation.
d. Assess the position indicator band after repositioning the patient and PRN to ensure the
device is positioned properly against the rectal floor every shift and PRN.

LT o>

-

45



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Stool Management (Rectal Tube) Dignicare Stool Management System

Page 4 of 5

e. Assess the catheter tubing and collection bag ensure the tubing is not twisted or kinked
and collection bag is in properly position.

f. frrigation of patient’s bowel (through the clear port) may be performed to break up stool.

g. Flush tubing at least twice per shift and as needed.

h. Monitor output per the Standards of Patient Care.

i.

The collection bag should be changed and disposed of as needed, and/or when full.

i. Grab ball valve connector, gently push in catheter, and twist counterclockwise.

ii. Remove bag, insert bag plug into socket connector, and dispose of bag.

i Remove/replace when clinically indicated, at least every twenty nine days per
manufacturer's recommendation.

Obtaining a Fecal Sample

a. Disconnect the ball valve connector from the bag by turning counterclockwise.

b. Obtain a sample from the drainage bag by pouring specimen into a specimen container.

C. Re-attach current bag or new bag to ball valve by turning clockwise.

Troubleshooting the DigniCare® SMS

a. If the retention cuff area becomes obstructed with fecal matter and the catheter may
require irrigation of flushing with tap water and/or the patient may be lying on catheter
drain tube.

b. Use only gravity or slow manual irrigation.

C. Do not irrigate patient with compromised intestinal wall integrity.

d. Ensure the appropriate port irrigation or flush port remains parallel to the catheter in order
to prevent kinking in the tubing and blockage of the injected liquid.

e. Irrigate the catheter as follows and repeat the procedure as often as necessary to

maintain proper functioning of the device.
i Fill syringe with tap water
ii. Attach to irrigation port
iii. Depress plunger

f. Flush the catheter if the drainage tube becomes obstructed with fecal matter and repeat
the process as needed. If repeated flushing with water does not return the flow of stool
through the catheter, the device should be inspected to determine if there is an external
obstruction i.e. pressure from a body part or piece of equipment) if no source of
obstruction of the device is detected, use of the device should be discontinues.
i. Fill syringe with tap water
ii. Attach to flush port
iii. Depress plunger

Replacement/Removal of the Collection Bag

a. Grab the collection bag
b. Grab the ball valve connector
C. Gently push the catheter in and twist the catheter in a counter-clockwise direction.

i. Rotate the ball valve connector 90 degrees to ensure the ball valve is closed prior
to removal of the collection bag.

d. Once the bag is remove, insert bag plug into the socket connector and dispose.
e. Replace the collection bag by securely snapping a new bag to the connector.
Removal of DigniCare® SMS

a. Explain procedure to patient.

b. Deflate cuff by attaching syringe to inflation port and slowly withdraw all water.

i. If less than 45 mL is removed, reposition patient and repeat as needed.
ii. Disconnect the syringe and discard.
iii. Grasp the rectal tubing as close to the patient as possible, have patient bear down,
and slowly pull cuff out of the anus.
iv. Dispose of the device
Documentation
a. The RN inserting the DigniCare® SMS is responsible for entering the following in the
patient’s medical record:

46



| Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual
Stool Management (Rectal Tube) Dignicare Stool Management System
Page 5 of §

i. Date and time of insertion.
ii. Patient’s response to insertion.
iii. Volume of stool every shift and PRN.

iv. Education provided and follow-up education.

V. Flushing and irrigation, if performed.
b. Document presences of the DigniCare ® SMS every shift and PRN in the medical record.
C. Document discontinuation of the DigniCare® SMS in the medical record.

47



‘C‘J) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

| MEDICAL STAFF POLICY-MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 04/08 SUBJECT: Credentialing Policy, Processing
Medical Staff Reappointments

| REVISION DATE: 04/08; 04/10; 01/12;3/414,42/44,8/42 POLICY NUMBER: 8710 - 548

Credentials Committee Approval: 08/424/16

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 08/124/16

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:

Board of Directors Approval: 04/08:-04/140:014/42:08/12

A. PURPOSE:

1. To provide an objective, evidence-based credentialing process that enables the Medical Staff to
make informed recommendations to the governing body ensuring candidates for Medical Staff
membership renewal are credentialed according to The Joint Commission, CMS, and Medical
Staff Bylaws requirements.

2. The Medical Staff shall consider each application for reappointment using the procedure and the
criteria and standards for membership and clinical privileges set forth in the Bylaws and Rules and
Regulations appropriate for each department. The Medical Staff shall perform this function also
for reappointment of privileges for Allied Health Professionals. The Medical Staff shall investigate
each application for reappointment and make an objective, evidence-based decision based upon
assessment of the applicant's general competencies before recommending action to the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors shall ultimately be responsible for granting membership and
privileges. By applying to the Medical Staff for reappointment, the applicant agrees that
regardless of whether he/she is reappointed or granted the requested privileges, he/she will
comply with the responsibilities of Medical Staff membership and the Medical Staff Bylaws and
Rules as they exist and as they may be modified from time-to-time.

| B. REAPPOINTMENT PROCESS:
1. Schedule for Reappointment
a. As described in the Medical Staff Bylaws Article IV, §4.6, at least 90 days prior to the
expiration date of each staff member's term of appointment, the Medical Staff office shall
provide the member with a reappointment application form . Completed reappointment
application forms shall be returned to the Medical Staff office at least sixty (60) days prior
to the expiration date. Failure, without good cause, to return the form within the specified
timeframe shall result in termination of privileges and prerogatives at the end of the current
staff membership.
2. Content of Reappointment Form
a. The reappointment application shall seek information concerning the changes in the
member’s qualifications since his or her last review. Specifically, the application shall
request an update of all of the information and certifications requested in the appointment
application form with the exception of that information which cannot change over time;
such as information regarding the member’s premedical and medical education, date of
birth, and so forth. The application shall also require information as to whether the
member requests any change in his or her staff status and/or in his or her clinical
privileges, including any reduction, deletion or additional privileges. Requests for
additional privileges must be supported by the type and nature of evidence which would be
necessary for such privileges to be granted in an initial application.
i. If the staff member’s level of clinical activity at this hospital is not sufficient to permit
evaluation of his or her competence to exercise the clinical privileges requested, 48




| Medical Staff Poliey-Manual
Credentialing Policy, Processing Medical Staff Reappointments
| Page 2 of 4

the staff member shall have the burden of providing evidence of clinical
performance at another institution in whatever form the Medical Staff may require.

b. In addition to completing the information requested on the reappointment form, the staff
member shall submit his or her Medical Staff dues as described in the Medical Staff
Bylaws Article XIIl, §13.2. Application for reappointment will be considered incomplete if
dues (or other fine or assessments) are not paid within the time frame as described in §4.6
of the Medical Staff Bylaws and the member is deemed to be voluntarily resigned without
the rights to a hearing as described in Article VIl §7.2 of the Bylaws.

3. Verification and Collection of Information (Medical Staff Bylaws §4.6)

a. The Medical Staff shall, in timely fashion, seek to verify the additional information made
available on each reappointment application and to collect any other materials or
information deemed pertinent by the Department/Division Chair, Credentials Committee,
Medical Executive Committee, or Board of Directors. The information shall address
without limitation:

i. Reasonable evidence of current ability to perform privileges that may be requested
including, but not limited to, consideration of the member’s professional
performance, judgment, clinical or technical skills and patterns of care and
utilization as demonstrated in the findings of quality improvement, risk
management and utilization management activities.

ii. Participation in relevant continuing education activities.

iii. Level/amount of clinical activity (patient care contacts) at the hospital. Patient care
activities include:

1) Inpatients:

a) Admitting

b) Attending

c) Assisting at Surgery

d) Consulting

e) Operative and other procedures
2) Outpatients:

a) Assisting at Surgery

b) Operative and other procedures
c) Emergency Room visits
iv. Sanctions imposed or pending including, but not limited to, previously successful or

currently pending challenges to any licensure or registration (State or district, Drug
Enforcement Administration) or the voluntary relinquishment of such licensure or
registration.

v. Confirmation of the applicant’s health status, both physical and mental, or
substance abuse that could affect his or her ability to exercise the clinical privileges
requested, or whether the applicant required any type of accommodation in order
to exercise the requested privileges safely and competently.

vi. Attendance at Medical Staff Department/Division and committee meetings.
vii. Participation as a staff officer and committee member/chair.
viii. Timely and accurate completion and preparation of medical records as outlined in

Medical Staff Policy: and-Prosedure-8710-5148-Medical Record Documentation
Requirements 8710-518.

iX. Cooperativeness and general demeanor in relationships with other practitioners,
hospital personnel, and patients as described in the Medical Staff Policy:
Professional Behavior Peliey-8710-544-1570.

X. Professional liability claim experience, including being named as a party in any
professional liability claims and the disposition of any pending claims.

Xi. Compliance with all applicable Medical Staff and hospital bylaws, rules, and
policies.

Xii. Two Professional references are required and from at least one (1) practitioner

who is familiar with the member’s current qualifications by virtue of having recently
worked with the member or having recently reviewed the member's cases. 49



| Medical Staff Roliey-Manual
Credentialing Policy, Processing Medical Staff Reappointments
| Page 3 of 4

(2]

Xiii. Any other pertinent information, which may include, the staff member's activities at
other hospitals and his or her medical practice outside the hospital.
Xiv. Teleradiologists - Hospital affiliations shall be selected for 5 institutions and

verified.
XV, Information concerning the member from the State licensing board and the Federal
National Practitioner Data Bank.
XVi. Information from other relevant sources.
Department Action
a. The Department/Division Chair shall review the application and all other relevant available

information. The Department/Division Chair will then forward his or her written
recommendations to the Credentials Committee.

Credentials Committee Action

a. The Credentials Committee shall review the application, all other relevant available
information and the Department /Division Chair's recommendations. The committee shall
transmit to the Medical Executive Committee its written recommendations.

Medical Executive Committee Action

a. The Medical Executive Committee shall review the Department/Division Chair's and the
Credentials Committee’s recommendations and all other relevant information available
and shall forward recommendations to the Board of Directors.

Board Closure

a. To ensure the Medical Staff reappointment credentialing process is completed; upon
Board of Directors approval of the reappointments, board closure process shall be initiated
to include notifying the practitioner of the decision regarding privilege(s) and/or Medical
Staff membership.

Reappointment Recommendations

a. Reappointment recommendations shall be written and shall specify whether the member's
appointment should be renewed; renewed with modified membership category and/or
clinical privileges; or terminated. The reason for any adverse recommendation shall be
described.

b. The Medical Staff may require additional proctoring of any clinical privileges that are used
so infrequently as to make it difficult or unreliable to assess current competency without
additional proctoring, and such proctoring requirements imposed for lack of activity shall
not result in any hearing rights.

PECIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

l\)—kl

o

Extension of Appointment: As provided in Bylaws, Article 4, §4.6-4.

Failure to File Reappointment Application: As provided in Bylaws, Article 4, §4.5.10

a. Members who automatically resign under this rule shall be processed as new applicants
should they wish to reapply.

Reapplication After Adverse Appointment: As provided in Bylaws, Article 4, §4.5.10

Relinquishment of Privileges

a. A staff member who wishes to relinquish or limit particular privileges (other than privileges
necessary to fulfill Emergency Room call responsibilities) shall notify the Credentials
Committee identifying the particular privileges to be relinquished or limited.

Additional Privilege Requests

a. Whenever a member desires to increase his/her clinical privileges, he/she shall indicate
additional requested privileges on a privilege request form and submit the completed form
to the Credentials Committee. The member’s request must include documentation of
training and/or experience as required by the Rules and Regulations. The request shall be
processed in the same manner as an application for initial clinical privileges.

b. Prior to the consideration or granting of any privilege not currently delineated on the
Delineation of Privileges it shall be determined, by the Department/Division Chair whether
the resources necessary to support the requested privilege are currently available or are
available within a specified time frame as stated in the Medical Staff Policy: Requests

50



| Medical Staff Pelisy-Manuat
Credentialing Policy, Processing Medical Staff Reappointments
| Page 4 of4

for New Privileges/Technologies New to TCMC Determinationfor-Organizational
Resource-Availabili-Policy-8710-526.

6. Leave of Absence
a. During any period of leave of absence, the requirement for reappointment as specified in
the Bylaws, Article 4.4, shall continue unless waived by the Medical Executive Committee
(MEC).

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Medical Staff Policy: Medical Record Documentation Requirements 8710-518
2. Medical Staff Policy: Professional Behavior Policy 8710-570
3. Medical Staff Policy: Requests for New Privileges/Technologies New to TCMC 8710-526

51



TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
PHARMACY AND THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE

Request for Formulary Status Evaluation:

Admission {x } Deletion { }
Date: 03/17/2016 Requestor: Dr. Dandy Lee
Trade Name: Bridion Generic Name: Sugammadex

Dosage form(s): 200 mg/2 mL or 500 mg/5 mL single dose vials
Indications:

1. Reversal of neuromuscular blockade caused by rocuronium bromide or vecuronium bromide in
adults undergoing surgery

Efficacy:

Comprehensive summary and assessment of eleven Phase III trials: The total number of patients in each
study ranged from 30 to 137. Included patients were greater than 18 years of age, unless otherwise
specified in table three. Trials also included patients of varying American Society of Anesthesiologists
(ASA) physical status.. The ASA physical status classification system identifies the risk of complications
in surgical patients. All 11 trials found sugammadex to be associated with quicker recovery of TOF to 0.9,
and no serious adverse reactions were reported related to the study drug.

Safety:
Propensity for medication error: Moderate

Abuse potential: None
Sentinel event potential:
1) Bradycardia observed in clinical trials
2) Hypersensitivity reactions (flushing, urticarial, rash, hypotension) observed in patients

without prior exposure to sugammades

Cost comparison with similar Formulary products: N/A

70 kg patient Neostigmine (max 5 mg) + Sugammadex
Glycopyrrolate
Standard reversal | $65 +$6=$71 2 mg/kg (140 mg) $90 (1 vial)
Deep reversal $65 +$6=%71 4 mg/kg (280 mg) $180 (2 vials)
Emergency 565 +56=871 16 mg/kg (1,120 mg) $537 (6
reversal vials)
Recommendation:

Recommend the addition of suggamadex 200mg/2mL to the TCMC formulary. Sugammadex will be
restricted to the Anesthesia Service strictly for indications outlined in the Criteria For Use listed below.
Neostigmine/glycopyrrolate will remain the first line option for reversal of neuromuscular blockade by

52



rocuronium or vecuronium. Use of suggamadex will be monitored and a Medication Use Evaluation
(MUE) will be conducted after a period of no later than 1 year to ensure adherence to established criteria.

Criteria For Use:

Inclusion (patient should receive if one of the following is selected)
Rescue therapy in a rare but life-threatening ‘““cannot intubate, cannot ventilate” situation with
rocuronium only
Emergency reversal needed (premature procedure termination) soon after induction of profound
depth of neuromuscular blockade with rocuronium or vecuronium
Rapid reversal necessary for neurologic function monitoring during spine-related surgery in cases
where degree of paralysis cannot be adequately reversed in a timely fashion with
neostigmine/glycopyrrolate

Exclusion (patient should not receive sugammadex of one of these is selected)
Patient did not receive rocuronium or vecuronium as neuromuscular blocking agent
Patient has a known hypersensitivity to the active substance or to any of the excipients

Process/Plan to monitor Patient Response:
1. Monitor HR, respiratory rate, oxygen saturation after administration
2. Monitor for signs of hypersensitivity

References:
Sugammadex® package insert. Merk & Co.Inc., Kenilworth, NJ. 2015.

McGrath C, Hunter J. Monitoring of neuromuscular block. Contin Educ Anaesth Crit Care Pain.
2006 Feb; 6(1):7-12.

Srivastava A, Hunter J. Reversal of neuromuscular block. British Journal of Anaesthesia. 2009
May 24; 103(1):115-29.

FDA approves Bridion to reverse effects of neuromuscular blocking drugs used during surgery.
Food and Drug Administration. Silver Spring, MD. 2015. Available from:
http://www.fda.gov/NewsEvents/Newsroom/Press Announcements/ucm477512.htm

ASA physical status classification system. American Society of Anesthesiologiest. 2014, Oct 15.
Available  from:  hitps://www.asahq.org/resources/clinical-information/asa-physical-status-
classification-system

Rahe-Meyer N, Berger C, Wittmann M, Solomon C, Abels E, Rietbergen H, Reuter D.
Recovery from prolonged deep rocuronium-induced neuromuscular blockade: A randomized

comparison of sugammadex reversal with spontaneous recovery. Anaesthesist. 2015
Jul;64(7):506-12.

Amao R, Zomow M, Cowan R, Cheng D, Morte J, Allard M. Use of sugammadex in patients
with a history of pulmonary disease. Journal of Clinical Anesthesia. 2011 Sept 9; 24:289-97.

53



TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
PHARMACY AND THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE

Request for Formulary Status Evaluation:

Admission {x } Deletion { }
Date: 05/01/2016 Requestor: Dr. Oska Lawrence/Dr. Navneet
Boddu
Trade Name: Emend Generic Name: Aprepitant

Dosage form(s): 40mg, 80mg, 125mg capsules.150mg single dose vial for injection
Indications:

1. For prevention of acute and delayed nausea/vomiting associated with initial and repeat courses of
highly emetogenic chemotherapy regimens, including high-dose cisplatin

2. For postoperative nausea/vomiting (PONV) prophylaxis

Efficacy:
Chemotherapy associated nausea/vomiting

Herrstedt et al (2005) conducted a randomized, double-blind study comparing efficacy and tolerability of
aprepitant (APR), ondansetron and dexamethasone to a serotonin receptor antagonist and dexamethasone
in 866 breast cancer patients receiving a cyclophosphamide-based regimen. Patients randomized to the
APR regimen received: Day 1 (aprepitant 125 mg, ondansetron 8 mg and dexamethasone 12 mg) before
chemotherapy and ondansetron 8 mg 8 hours later; Day 2-3 (aprepitant 80 mg every day). Patients
randomized to the control regimen received: Day 1 (ondansetron 8 mg twice a day and dexamethasone
20 mg before chemotherapy); Day 2-3 (ondansetron 8 mg twice daily). Each treatment repeated for <3
more cycles for a total of 4 cycles. Incycle 1, 50.8% of the APR patients achieved a complete response
compared to 42.5% in the control group. Over the 4 cycles, the investigators reported that the percentage
of patients achieving a complete response (CR) in Cycle 1 and who sustained a CR over cycles 2-4 was
greater with the APR group compared to the control group (p=0.017). Both treatment groups were
reported to be well tolerated. The incidence of adverse effects was similar for both treatment arms.

Post-operative nausea and vomiting

Gan et al (2007) conducted a randomized, double-blind trial comparing the efficacy and tolerability of
aprepirtant and ondansetron for the prevention of postoperative nausea and vomiting in 805 patients
receiving general anesthesia for open abdominal surgery. Patients were randomized to receive a
preoperative dose of aprepitant 40mg orally, aprepitant 125mg orally, or ondansetron 4mg intravenously.
The incidence of vomiting, nausea, and use of rescue therapy were assessed over 48 hours after surgery.

For the primary end point (complete response [no vomiting and no use of rescue agents] there was no
difference between aprepitant and ondansetron (45% with aprepiatnt 40mg, 43% with aprepitant 125mg,
and 42% with ondansetron). The incidence of no vomiting in the first 24 hours was significantly higher
with aprepitant 40mg (90%) and aprepitant 125mg (95%) versus ondansetron (74%), (p<0.001 for both
comparisons). The rates of nausea control and use of rescue therapy however did not significantly differ
between the treatment groups. Side effects appeared to be similar amongst patients in all treatment arms.

54



Safety:

Propensity for medication error: Low
Abuse potential: None

Sentinel event potential:
1) Neutropenia (Risk <3% in adults)

Cost comparison with similar Formulary products: N/A

Other considerations:

Aprepitatant has been used for several years at TCMC’s Outpatient Infusion Center. It has been used as a
non-formulary agent for inpatients as part of oncologic treatment regimens proposed by national
guidelines. The purpose of this request is to formally add this drug to the TCMC formulary.

Aprepitant also represents a new treatment approach for the prevention of post-operative nausea and
vomiting and may prevent catastrophic events in patients who are at high risk of aspiration in this setting.

Recommendation:

Recommend the addition of aprepitant 40mg and 125mg capsules in addition to fosaprepitant 150mg vials
for injection. For the indication of chemotherapy associated nausea/vomiting, aprepitant will be utilized
as recommended for moderate-highly emetogenic regimens as outlined in accepted practice guidelines.

With regard to post-operative nausea/vomiting prophylaxis, we recommend allowing use in the pre-
operative setting for high-risk patients only as identified by anesthesiologist pre-op screening

Process/Plan to monitor Patient Response:
1) Monitor patient for signs/symptoms of nausea/vomiting
References:

Gan TJ, Apfel CC, Kovac A, et al. A randomized, double-blind comparison of the NK 1
antagonist, aprepitant, versus ondansetron for the prevention of postoperative nausea and
vomiting. Anesth Analg 2007; 104:1082.

Herrstedt J, Muss H, Warr D, Hesketh P, Eisenberg P, Raftopoulos H, Grunberg S, Gabriel M,
Rodgers A, Hustad C, Horgan K, Skobieranda F. Efficacy and Tolerability of Aprepitant for the
Prevention of Chemotherapy-Induced Nausea and Emesis over Multiple Cycles of Moderately
Emetogenic Chemotherapy. Cancer 2005; 104(7):1548-55.

Lasseter KC, Gambale J et al. Tolerability of Fosaprepitant and Bioequivalency to Aprepitant in
Healthy Subjects. J Clin Pharmacol 2007; 47:834-40.

War D, Grunber S, Gralla R, Hesketh P, Roila F, de Wit R, Carides A, Talyor A, Evans J,
Horgan K. The oral NK1 antagonist aprepitant for the prevention of acute and delayed
chemotherapy-induced nausea and vomiting: Pooled data from 2 randomised, double-blind,
placebo controlled trials.

55



TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
PHARMACY AND THERAPEUTICS COMMITTEE

Request for Formulary Status Evaluation:

Admission {x } Deletion { }
Date: 4/1/2016 Requestor: Dr. Richard Barager
Trade Name: Veltassa Generic Name: Patiromer sorbitex calcium

Dosage form(s): Powder— 8.4, 16.8 and 25.2 grams packets

Indications:
1. Treatment of hyperkalemia

Efficacy:

[CHF Patients] PEARL — HF Trial - Patiromer decreased potassium and increased the proportion of
subjects able to proceed with spironolactone dose titration. Compared with placebo, the patiromer group
had significantly lower potassium (mean difference 0.45 mEq/L, p50.001) and a lower incidence of
hyperkalemia (7.3% patiromer vs. 24.5% placebo, p=0.015). At the end of the treatment period, 91% vs.
74% of subjects were able to increase their spironolactone dose in the patiromer and placebo groups,
respectively (p=0.019). Hypokalemia occurred in 6% and 0% of the patiromer and placebo groups,
respectively (p=0.094).

[CKD Patients] AMETHYST-DN Trial - The mean reduction from baseline in serum potassium level at
week 4 or time of first dose titration in patients with mild hyperkalemia was 0.35 (95% CI, 0.22-0.48)
mEq/L for the 4.2 g twice daily starting-dose group, 0.51 (95% ClI, 0.38-0.64) mEq/L for the 8.4 g twice
daily starting-dose group, and 0.55 (95% ClI, 0.42-0.68) mEq/L for the 12.6 g twice daily starting-dose
group. In those with moderate hyperkalemia, the reduction was 0.87 (95% CI, 0.60-1.14) mEq/L for the
8.4 g twice daily starting-dose group, 0.97 (95% CI, 0.70-1.23) mEq/L for the 12.6 g twice daily starting-
dose group, and 0.92 (95% CI, 0.67-1.17) mEq/L for the 16.8 g twice daily starting-dose group (P <.001
for all changes vs baseline by hyperkalemia starting-dose groups within strata).

Safety:
Propensity for medication error: Low

Abuse potential: None

Sentinel event potential:
1) Bowel obstruction — use should be avoided in patients with severe constipation, bowel
obstruction as it may worsen GI conditions
2) Hypomagnesemia — drug may bind to magnesium in the colon and cause low
magnesium levels

56



Cost comparison with similar Formulary products:

Drug Cost per dose Cost per Day

Sodium polystyrene sulfate ) i .
(15/60mL) $7 $7-28 (Dosed 1-4x daily)
Patiromer (8.4g) $30 $30

Other considerations:

Based on the published studies reviewed in this monograph, patiromer may be good alternative to SPS in
management of hyperkalemia. It appears to be better tolerated and likely has greater safety margin in
patients with CKD and HF due to reduced sodium load. In addition, RAAS inhibition has been shown to
benefit renal and cardiac function, and the ability to continue uninterrupted therapy in patients with heart
failure is important. Patiromer, not unlike SPS, is not ideal agent for treatment of acute hyperkalemia due
to delayed onset of action and its use will likely be most appropriate in patients with chronic or
medication-induced hyperkalemia.

Recommendation:

We recommend the addition of patiromer to the TCMC Formulary as an alternative to sodium polystyrene
sulfate for the management of hyperkalemia in patients with chronic kidney disease (CDK) or heart
failure (HF). For patients with hyperkalemia who can otherwise tolerate sodium polysterene sulfate, this
will remain the first-line treatment option for this indication.

Process/Plan to monitor Patient Response:
1) Monitor serum potassium and magnesium levels while on therapy

References:
Veltassa™. Full Prescribing Information (Package insert). Relypsa, Inc. Oct 2015

Pitt B, Anker SD, Bushinski DA et al. Evaluation of the efficacy and safety of RLY5016, a
polymeric potassium binder, in a double-blind, placebo-controlled study in patients with chronic
heart failure (the PEARL-HF trial). Eur Heart J 2011; 32:820-828

Weir MR, Barkis GL, Bushinski DA et al. Patiromer in patients with kidney disease and
hyperkalemia receiving RAAS inhibitors. N Engl ] Med 2015; 372:211-221

Barkis GL, Pitt B, Weir MR et al. Effect of patiromer on serum potassium level in patients with
hyperkalemia and diabetic kidney disease: the AMETHYST-DN randomized clinical trial.
JAMA 2015; 314:151-161

57



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE CHARTER

The Professional Affairs Committee (the “Committee™) of the Tri-City Healthcare District
(“District”) has multiple purposes and is delegated certain key responsibilities as enumerated
herein.

I Purpose

The Committee is to provide governance oversight and make recommendations to the Tri-City
Healthcare District Board of Directors (“Board™) regarding quality, patient safety, performance
improvement, and risk management policies; oversee development and implementation of the
Quality Assurance, Quality Improvement, and Patient Safety (QA/QI/PS) Programs; and provide
oversight of processes relating to the reporting, monitoring, investigation, and appropriate
responsive/corrective actions taken in connection with any issues identified at the meetings,
including the following:

1. Quality. The Committee will review reports regarding quality of patient care,
including:

a. Hospital operating unit and quality intervention programs;
b. Core measures and performance measures;
c. Medical staff and contracted hospital-based physicians’ reports.

2. Patient Safety. The Committee will review reports regarding patient safety,
including:

a. Patient safety improvement programs;

b. Incidents reported to the California Department of Public Health (CDPH)
including any findings;

c. Surveys from The Joint Commission, Center for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, and other regulatory agencies.

3. Performance Improvement. The Committee will review the following reports:
a. Operating unit performance improvements;
b. Performance of clinical service providers.
4. Risk Management. The Committee will review the District’s risk management

program, including:

a. Summaries of incident reports;

58



b. Compliments and complaints;

c. Surveys from Joint Commission, CMS, and CDPH visits;
d. Sentinel Events/Root Cause Analyses;
e. Professional liability claims and lawsuits.
5. Oversight Duties and Responsibilities. In addition, the Committee will:
a. Review and reassess the adequacy of this charter annually, recommend

any proposed changes to the Board for approval, and publish this charter
in accordance with applicable regulatory authorities;

b. Review significant reports prepared by any individual performing
significant quality assurance functions together with management’s
response and follow-up to these reports;

c. Review the District’s Administrative policies and procedures as necessary.

d. Consult with appropriate Consultants as necessary to inform the
deliberations and committee decisions as necessary.

I1. Membership

The Committee shall consist of three Directors and four physicians. The CEO, COO, Risk
Manager, and CNE shall support the Committee without vote but be counted towards a quorum
as alternates.

I11. Meetings

The Committee may establish its own meeting schedule annually. The Committee will adjourn
into closed session to meet with the legal counsel and to hear reports of the Hospital and Medical
Staff Quality Assurance Committees.

IV.  Minutes
The Committee will maintain written minutes of its meetings. Draft minutes will be presented to
the Board for consideration at its meetings. The Senior Executive Assistant or designee will

provide assistance to the Committee in scheduling meetings, preparing agendas and keeping
minutes.

V. Reports

DOCS 116569-000004/1931396.1

59



The Committee will report regularly to the Board regarding (i) all determinations made or
actions taken pursuant to its duties and responsibilities, as set forth above, and (ii) any
recommendations of the Committee submitted to the Board for action.

VI Conduct

Each Committee member is expected to read the District’s Code of Conduct which can be found
at http://www.tricitymed.org/about-us/code-of-conduct/ and shall comply with all provisions
thereof while a member of this Committee.

Approved by BOD: 9/29/11
Approved by BOD: 3/28/13
Approved by BOD: 5/29/14

DOCS 116569-000004/1931396.1

60



